
THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MCDOUGALL 
COMMITTEE/COUNCIL MEETING 

TO BE HELD WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021 AT 7:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3. PRIORITIZATION OF AGENDA

4. ADOPTION OF MINUTES

i) THAT the minutes of the Committee/Council Meeting held on October 6,
2021 be adopted as circulated. Rsl.

5. DEPUTATIONS

Matters Arising.

6. PLANNING/BUILDING

i) John Jackson, Parry Sound Area Planning Board. Rsl.
Re: Consent Application B37/2021 (McD) McDevitt, 1 new lot fronting
on Portage Lake.

Matters Arising. 

7. BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT

Matters Arising.

8. FIRE PROTECTION

i) Sylvia Jones Solicitor General. (attachment)
Re: Community Safety and Well-being (CSWB) Plan

Matters Arising. 

9. EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

Matters Arising.

10. RECREATION

Matters Arising.



THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MCDOUGALL 
COMMITTEE/COUNCIL MEETING 

 
TO BE HELD WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021 AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
11. PUBLIC WORKS 
 

Matters Arising. 
 
12. ENVIRONMENT 

 
i) Waste Management. 

 
Matters Arising. 

 
13. FINANCE 
 

i) Accounts Payable. Rsl. 
 

ii) O.P.P. (attachment) 
Re: Calls for Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report. 
 

Matters Arising. 
 

14. ADMINISTRATION 
 

i) Robyn Kurtes, Director, Environmental Policy Branch, Ministry of the 
Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP). (attachment) 
Re: MECP Decision on the Proposed Land Use Compatibility Guideline. 

 
ii) Rural Ontario Municipal Association (ROMA). (attachment) 

Re: ROMA Survey on the Future of Rural Ontario. 
 

iii) 2022 Committee/Council Schedule. Rsl. 
 

iv) Ministry of Northern Development, Mines, Natural Resources and 
Forestry. (attachment) 
Re: Proposed amendments to the Crown Forest Sustainability Act, 
1994, Professional Foresters Act, 2000 and the Public Lands Act, Ministry 
of Northern Development, Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry 
included in the Supporting People and Businesses Act, 2021. 
 

 
v)  
Matters Arising. 

 



THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MCDOUGALL 
COMMITTEE/COUNCIL MEETING 

TO BE HELD WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021 AT 7:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 

15. REQUESTS FOR SUPPORT

i) Municipality of Leamington. (attachment)
Re: Request for Provincial Government to implement higher standards
and increased funding to Long-Term Care Homes.

ii) Town of Parry Sound. (attachment)
Re: Request that the Province drop appeal against Robinson-Huron
Treaty annuities claim.

Matters Arising. 

16. MOTIONS OF WHICH NOTICE HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY GIVEN

17. COMMITTEE REPORTS

i) Belvedere Heights. (attachment)
Re:  October 7, 2021 Annual Information Meeting.

ii) Community Policing Advisory Committee. (attachment)
Re: October 21, 2021 Meeting Agenda

iii) John Meyer, Chair, Parry Sound Area Active Transportation. (attachment)
Re: New Recreation Centre.

iv) North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit. (attachment)
Re: Public Service Announcements and Media Releases.
a. Health Unit Reaching People Where They Are At
b. News Release - See the Person. Be Kind. Everyone Has a Story. Take

Action on Stigma and Homelessness.
c. Public Service Announcement - Consider the Risk as you Plan for

Thanksgiving
d. Public Service Announcement - Mobile and Walk-in COVID-19 Vaccine

Clinics to be Held October 5 to October 8
e. Public Service Announcement - Walk-in and Mobile COVID-19 Vaccine

Clinics to be Held October 13 to October 17

Matters Arising. 

18. REPORT OF THE CAO



THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MCDOUGALL 
COMMITTEE/COUNCIL MEETING 

TO BE HELD WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021 AT 7:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 

19. GENERAL ITEMS AND NEW BUSINESS

20. BY-LAWS

21. CLOSED SESSION

i) personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal
employees or local board employees.

22. RATIFICATION OF MATTERS FROM CLOSED SESSION

23. CONFIRMATION BY-LAW

i) By-Law No. 2021-48.
Re: To confirm the proceedings of the Committee/Council meeting held
on October 20, 2021.

24. ADJOURNMENT



Resolution List for October 20, 2021 

THAT the minutes of the Committee/Council Meeting held on October 6, 2021 be adopted as 
circulated. 

- - - - - - - - 

THAT the Council for the Corporation of the Municipality of McDougall has no objections to 
the approval of Consent No. B37/2021 (McD), applied for by Barry and Lori McDevitt, being 
Part of Lot 23 and 24, Concession 1 in the Geographic Township of' McDougall, now the 
Municipality of McDougall, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Payment of a parkland dedication fee satisfactory to the Municipality;
2. That the applicant enter into a 51(26) development agreement to implement

the recommendations of the Noise Impact Study prepared by J.E. Coulter
Associates Ltd.;

3. Confirmation from CN that they have no objection to the proposed Consent;
4. Receiving adequate 911 addressing for the new lot.; and
5. Payment of any applicable planning fees.

- - - - - - - - 

THAT the attached lists of Accounts Payable for October __, 2021 in the amount of 
$________ and payroll for October __, 2021 in the amount of $_______ be approved for 
payment.  

- - - - - - - - 
THAT the Council for the Corporation of the Municipality of McDougall approve the attached 
2022 Committee/Council schedule. 

- - - - - - - - 
BE IT RESOLVED that the next portion of the meeting be closed to the public at    p.m.
in order to address a matter pertaining to: 
1. the security of the property of the municipality or local board;
2. personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal employees or

local board employees;
3. a proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality or local

board;
4. labour relations or employee negotiations;
5. litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals,

affecting the municipality or local board;
6. the receiving of advice which is subject to solicitor/client privilege, including

communications necessary for that purpose;
7. a matter in respect of which a council, board, committee or other body has authorized

a meeting to be closed under another act;
8. an ongoing investigation respecting the municipality, a local board or a municipally-

controlled corporation by the Ontario Ombudsman appointed under the Ombudsman
Act, or a Municipal Ombudsman;

9. subject matter which relates to consideration of a request under the Municipal
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act.



10. the meeting is held for the purpose of educating or training the members and no
member discusses or otherwise deals with any matter in a way that materially
advances the business or decision making of the Council, Board or Committee.

11. information provided in confidence by another level of government or Crown agency
12. a trade secret or scientific, technical , commercial, financial or labour relations

information supplied in confidence which, if released, could significantly prejudice the
competitive position of a person or organization

13. a trade secret or scientific, technical, commercial or financial information that belongs
to the municipality or local board and has monetary value or potential monetary value

14. a position, plan, procedure, criteria or instruction to be applied to any negotiations
carried, or to be carried, on by the municipality or local board

- - - - - - - - 

THAT Council reconvene in Open Session at p.m.
- - - - - - - - 

THAT we do now adjourn at _______ p.m. 



THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MCDOUGALL 
COMMITTEE/COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 HELD WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2021 AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present Physically:  

Mayor D. Robinson (Chairperson) 
Councillor J. Constable 
Councillor L. Gregory 
Councillor L. Malott 
Councillor J. Ryman 

CAO/Director of Operations T. Hunt 
Clerk L. West 

Present Electronically:  
Chief Financial Officer S. Brisbane 

 Fire Chief P. Shoebottom 
Chief Building Official K. Dixon 

 Environmental Services Supervisor S. Goman 
 
 
As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the requirements for social 
distancing, this Committee/Council meeting will be held electronically in accordance 
with section 238 of the Municipal Act, 2001 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Robinson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Councillor Malott declared a conflict regarding an item on the accounts payable 
list at the time of consideration by Council. 
 

3. PRIORITIZATION OF AGENDA 
 
i) Addition to Section 17. Committee Reports, Item 2. Belvedere Heights 

Home for the Aged. 
Re: Architectural Visualization of Campus of Care, West Parry Sound 
Health Centre, in partnership with Belvedere Heights Home for the Aged 
and Lakeland Long Term Care. 
 

4. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
Resolution No. 2021/126      Constable/Malott 
i) THAT the minutes of the Committee/Council Meeting held on September 

15, 2021 be adopted as circulated.  
      “Carried” 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS 
Nil 
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Matters Arising. 
Nil 

6. PLANNING/BUILDING

i) John Jackson, Parry Sound Area Planning Board.
Re: Consent Application B37/2021 (McD) McDevitt, 1 new lot fronting
on Portage Lake.
Staff comments.
John Jackson joined the meeting virtually and gave an overview of the
application. Staff is to proceed with the application.

ii) Zoning By-Law Amendment Application Z01-2021 (279056 Ontario
Limited).
Re: 9 McDougall Road West – Deem Complete.
The Clerk gave an overview of the application.
Resolution No. 2021/127     Malott/Constable
THAT the Council for the Corporation of the Municipality of McDougall
deems Application Z01-2021 (279056 Ontario Limited) to amend the
Municipal Zoning By-law(s) a “Complete” Application under Subsection 34
of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P.13 as amended.

      “Carried” 

iii) Zoning By-Law Amendment Application Z02-2021 (Waltmar).
Re: Part Lot 24 Concession 1, Former McDougall Township, now in the
Municipality of McDougall – Deem Complete.
The Clerk gave an overview of the application.
Resolution No. 2021-128     Ryman/Gregory
THAT the Council for the Corporation of the Municipality of McDougall
deems Application Z02-2021 (Waltmar) to amend the Municipal Zoning
By-law(s) a “Complete” Application under Subsection 34 of the Planning
Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P.13 as amended.

      “Carried” 

Matters Arising. 
The Clerk gave an update regarding the Official Plan Review noting the following: 

- The Draft Report has been received.
- Comments have been received from the Lorimer Lake Cottagers

Association as well as comments received at the last meeting.  All
comments have been passed on to the consultant.
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- The Clerk will be meeting with the consultant next week to get a status
update.

- There will be a statutory public meeting held in January or February for
ratepayers to join and review the proposed Official Plan and express any
concerns.

Council requested that due to technical difficulties at the September 15, 2021 
meeting the consultants from MHBC be invited to a future meeting of Council as 
a follow-up from the Draft Background Report. 

7. BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT
Nil

Matters Arising.
Nil

8. FIRE PROTECTION
Nil

Matters Arising.
Nil

9. EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
Nil

Matters Arising.
Chief Shoebottom gave an update regarding the September 23rd train derailment.
Mayor Robinson and Council thanked the Fire Department and staff for their
quick response and all their hours and hard work.

10. RECREATION
Nil

Matters Arising.
Nil

11. PUBLIC WORKS
Nil

Matters Arising.
The CAO noted that Fowler Construction will be onsite at Lake Forest Drive next
Tuesday and hopefully this project will be complete in a couple of weeks.
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Mayor Robinson expressed thanks to staff and public works for responding to a 
concern from a property owner passed on to Councillor Ryman regarding a 
drainage issue on Ryder Dr. 
Councillor Ryman also passed on thanks from the property owner to McDougall 
staff for responding and resolving the issue. 

12. ENVIRONMENT

i) Waste Management.
Nil

ii) Report of the Environmental Services Supervisor ENV-8-2021.
Re: General Update, and Crawford Septic System Assessment RFP.
The Environmental Services Supervisor gave an overview of the report
and noted three quotes were received regarding the Crawford Septic
System Assessment RFP.  It was the recommendation of staff that the
proposal from Tatham Engineering be accepted.
Resolution No. 2021-129     Gregory/Ryman
THAT the Council of The Corporation of the Municipality of McDougall
does hereby accept the quote prepared by Tatham Engineering titled
“Crawford Subdivision, Municipality of McDougall, Engineering Fee
Proposal for Sewage Evaluations” in the amount of $13,080.00 (exclusive
of expenses and taxes).

      “Carried” 

Matters Arising. 
Nil 

13. FINANCE

i) Accounts Payable.
Councillor Malott declared a conflict regarding an item on the accounts
payable list.
Resolution No. 2021-130 Constable/Ryman 
THAT  the attached lists of Accounts Payable for October 5, 2021 in the 
amount of $297,927.08 and October 8, 2021 in the amount of $5,304.19 
and payroll for September 23, 2021 in the amount of $47,219.24, and 
October 7, 2021 in the amount of $39,907.77 be approved for payment. 

      “Carried” 

Matters Arising. 
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Nil 
 
 

 
14. ADMINISTRATION 
 

i) Ministry of Northern Development, Mines, Natural Resources and 
Forestry.  
Re: Watershed Conditions Statement – Flood Outlook, Parry Sound 
District, Including Muskoka River, Magnetawan River and Pickerel River 
Watersheds. 

  Council received as information. 
 

ii) 2022 Committee/Council Schedule.  
Council received as information and directed staff to bring a resolution 
forward at the next Committee/Council meeting. 
 

iii) 2022 Municipal Holiday Schedule.  
Council received as information. 
 

iv) Danny Whalen, President, The Federation of Northern Ontario 
Municipalities (FONOM).  
Re: FONOM resolution asking the Association of Municipalities of 
Ontario (AMO) to lobby the Premier of Ontario to grant Ontario 
Municipalities the same Municipal Revenue Tools as the City of Toronto. 

  Council received as information. 
 

Matters Arising. 
 Nil 
 
15. REQUESTS FOR SUPPORT 

 
i) Mac Bain, Executive Director, The Federation of Northern Ontario 

Municipalities (FONOM).  
Re: Consolidation of Agencies to address the Opioid, Mental Health 
and Addiction Crisis. 

  Council reviewed with no action indicated. 
 

ii) City of Sarnia.  
Re: Request that the Government of Ontario take additional and 
meaningful steps to address the ever increasing problem of “Renovictions” 
in The Province of Ontario. 
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  Council reviewed with no action indicated. 
 
 
 

Matters Arising. 
 Nil 
 
16. MOTIONS OF WHICH NOTICE HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY GIVEN 

Nil 
 

17. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
i) North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit. 

Re:  News Release and Public Service Announcements. 
a. News Release - Protect Yourself from West Nile Virus and Eastern 

Equine Encephalitis. 
b. News Release - Public Health Officials across Northern Ontario 

increase COVID-19 protection for all users of indoor sporting facilities. 
c. Public Service Announcement - Mobile and Walk-in COVID-19 Vaccine 

Clinics to be Held September 20 to 25. 
d. Public Service Announcement - Mobile and Walk-in COVID-19 Vaccine 

Clinics to be Held September 27 to October 3. 
e. News Release - Vaccine Certificate Questions Call the Health Unit. 
f. Public Service Announcement - Health Unit Warns of Potential 

Exposure to COVID-19 at The Boat.  
Council received as information. 
 

ii) Belvedere Heights Home for the Aged. 
Re: Architectural Visualization of Campus of Care, West Parry Sound 
Health Centre, in partnership with Belvedere Heights Home for the Aged 
and Lakeland Long Term Care. – short video 
Councillor Gregory gave a brief overview and a short video of the 
proposed Campus of Care Facility was viewed by Council and staff. 
 

 Matters Arising. 
Councillor Gregory noted that she attended the Truth and Reconciliation 
celebration at the West Parry Sound Health Centre this week representing the 
Municipality of McDougall and Belvedere Heights. 
 
Councillor Ryman noted that he virtually attended a CPAC meeting on 
September 29th. 
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Councillor Ryman also noted that he along with Mayor Robinson attended the 
fund raising event held at the Trestle Brewing Company in part with the 
Friendship Centre.  Mayor Robinson elaborated on this event and also thanked 
staff for their support in walking from the Municipal Office Building to the 
McDougall Recreation Centre wearing orange shirts in support of Truth and 
Reconciliation Day.  

 
18. REPORT OF THE CAO 

 
i) Report of the CAO.  

Re: General Update. 
 The CAO noted the following: 

- Gave an Update on the proposed pool complex. 
- He has spent the last two weeks dealing with the train derailment and 

expressed appreciation to staff and firefighters for their time and 
excellence in how this emergency was handled. 

- Gave a COVID-19 update noting that all Municipal Departments will 
remain open and will continue to follow COVID-19 protocals. 

- Noted positive comments have been received from staff and the public 
regarding the Municipal Office Building facelift. 

 
Councillor Ryman also expressed thanks to staff and the Emergency 
Management Team regarding the train derailment. 

 
19. GENERAL ITEMS AND NEW BUSINESS 

Nil 
 

20. BY-LAWS 
 
i) By-law 2021-44.  

Re:  Being a By-law to appoint a Fire Chief for the Municipality of 
McDougall and to rescind By-law 2003-11. 
Read a first, Second and Third Time, Passed, Signed and Sealed this 
6th day of October, 2021. 
 
Mayor Robinson on behalf of Council welcomed the new Fire Chief, 
Patrick Shoebottom to the Municipality. 

 
ii) By-law 2021-45. (attachment) 

Re:  A By-law to deem certain lots in the Municipality of McDougall not 
to be a part of a registered Plan of Subdivision (Plan M-215) (Parejo) 
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Read a first, Second and Third Time, Passed, Signed and Sealed this 
6th day of October, 2021. 

 
 

iii) By-law 2021-46.  
Re:  Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Stephen Harrison 
as a condition of approval of Consent No. B44/2020 (McD) 
Read a first, Second and Third Time, Passed, Signed and Sealed this 
6th day of October, 2021. 
 

21. CLOSED SESSION 
Nil 
 

22. RATIFICATION OF MATTERS FROM CLOSED SESSION 
Nil 
 

23. CONFIRMATION BY-LAW 
 
i) By-Law No. 2021-47. 

Re: To confirm the proceedings of the Committee/Council meeting held 
on October 6, 2021. 
Read a first, Second and Third Time, Passed, Signed and Sealed this 
6th day of October, 2021. 

 
24. ADJOURNMENT 

Resolution No. 2021-131      Gregory/Ryman 
THAT we do now adjourn at 8:13 p.m. 
           “Carried” 



Solicitor General Solliciteur général   

 

  
Office of the Solicitor General 
 
25 Grosvenor Street, 18th Floor 
Toronto ON  M7A 1Y6 
Tel: 416 326-5000 
Toll Free: 1-866-517-0571 
SOLGEN.Correspondence@ontario.ca 

Bureau du solliciteur général 
 
25, rue Grosvenor, 18e étage 
Toronto ON  M7A 1Y6 
Tél. : 416 326-5000 
Sans frais : 1-866-517-0571 
SOLGEN.Correspondence@ontario.ca 

 
 

132-2021-4188 
By email 

 
October 14, 2021 
 
 
Dear Head of Council/Chief Administrative Officer/Municipal Clerk: 
 
On behalf of the Ministry of the Solicitor General, I want to thank all municipalities, 
together with their multi-sectoral partners, that have taken steps towards developing, 
adopting and implementing their local community safety and well-being (CSWB) plans.  
 
As you know, the ministry extended the deadline for the completion and adoption of 
CSWB plans to July 1, 2021, to provide municipalities with an additional six months 
from the original deadline of January 1, 2021. Since then, we have received an 
overwhelming response from municipalities regarding their CSWB planning progress. 
This includes the submission of completed and interim plans and status updates. To 
date, of the 372 municipalities required to prepare and adopt a CSWB plan, 95 per cent 
(356 municipalities) have plans that are completed or in progress. 
 
The development and completion of these plans demonstrates municipal leadership and 
commitment to proactively addressing crime and complex social issues facing your 
communities. Municipalities are best positioned to work with local partners to develop 
effective community strategies and programs and create sustainable communities that 
respond to local needs and conditions.  
 
At this time, we are encouraging municipalities who have not already done so, to please 
submit their completed CSWB plan or provide an update on their CSWB planning status 
to the ministry via the following email address: SOLGEN.Correspondence@ontario.ca. 
Additionally, as a reminder, municipalities are required to publish their completed plans 
online within 30 days of adoption. 
 
As you may be aware, under the Police Services Act, the Solicitor General has the 
power to enforce the CSWB planning requirements by appointing a CSWB planner to 
any municipalities that repeatedly and intentionally fail to complete a plan, at the 
municipality’s expense. However, our government recognizes that municipalities are 
currently facing unprecedented circumstances in their communities due to the on-going 
impact of COVID-19. We also understand that some municipalities may experience 
delays in their planning and engagement processes as a result of the pandemic.  
 
 

…/2 
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Ministry staff will continue to look for ways to support our municipal partners to ensure 
they are able to meet their legislative requirements for CSWB planning. Where possible, 
municipalities are encouraged to explore alternative and innovative approaches to  
continue on-going planning efforts, such as through virtual engagement (e.g., webinars, 
teleconferences, online surveys, etc.). 
 
Municipalities are also encouraged to continue to work with respective police services, 
local multi-sectoral partners, and community members on the development and 
implementation of local CSWB plans. Localized, community-driven collaboration 
remains key to the success of CSWB planning, given the focus on creating workable 
solutions that are grounded in and tailored to individual community needs and features. 
 
If you have any questions about CSWB planning, please contact Shamitha 
Devakandan, Community Safety Analyst, Public Safety Division, at 
Shamitha.Devakandan@ontario.ca.  
 
I greatly appreciate your continued efforts as we move forward on this modernized 
approach to CSWB together. It is by working together that we can truly build safer and 
stronger communities in Ontario. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
 
Sylvia Jones 
Solicitor General 
 

mailto:Shamitha.Devakandan@ontario.ca


Calls For Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report

McDougall
July to September - 2021

Billing Categories
(Billing categories below do not match 
traditional crime groupings)

2021  2020

July to 
September

Year to 
Date

Time 
Standard

Year To Date 
Weighted Hours

July to 
September

Year to 
Date

Time 
Standard

Year To Date 
Weighted Hours

Violent 
Criminal Code

Sexual Assault 0 0  0.0 1 2 16.0 32.0

Sexual Interference 1 1 16.0 16.0 0 0  0.0

Non-Consensual 
Distribution of 
Intimate Images

0 0  0.0 2 2 16.0 32.0

Assault With 
Weapon or Causing 
Bodily Harm-Level 2

0 2 16.0 32.0 0 1 16.0 16.0

Assault-Level 1 1 3 16.0 48.0 2 6 16.0 96.0

Extortion 1 1 16.0 16.0 0 0  0.0

Criminal Harassment 1 1 16.0 16.0 1 1 16.0 16.0

Criminal Harassment 
- Offender Unknown 0 0  0.0 0 1 16.0 16.0

Indecent/Harassing 
Communications 0 0  0.0 0 2 16.0 32.0

Utter Threats to 
Person 0 0  0.0 1 2 16.0 32.0

Total 4 8 16.0 128.0 7 17 16.0 272.0

Property 
Crime 
Violations

Break & Enter 0 0  0.0 1 4 6.5 26.0

Theft Over - Persons 1 1 6.5 6.5 0 0  0.0

Theft Over - Other 
Theft 0 1 6.5 6.5 0 0  0.0

Theft of Motor 
Vehicle 0 0  0.0 0 1 6.5 6.5

Theft of - Automobile 0 0  0.0 0 1 6.5 6.5

Theft of - All Terrain 
Vehicles 0 0  0.0 1 1 6.5 6.5

Theft Under - 
Construction Site 0 0  0.0 0 1 6.5 6.5

Theft under - Other 
Theft 1 3 6.5 19.5 0 1 6.5 6.5

Theft under - Boat 
(Vessel) 0 0  0.0 1 1 6.5 6.5

Theft Under - 
Gasoline Drive-off 3 5 6.5 32.5 0 2 6.5 13.0

Theft FROM Motor 
Vehicle Under 
$5,000

1 3 6.5 19.5 1 1 6.5 6.5

Fraud -Money/
property/security <= 
$5,000

1 5 6.5 32.5 1 2 6.5 13.0

Fraud - Welfare 
benefits 0 1 6.5 6.5 0 0  0.0

Fraud - Other 0 2 6.5 13.0 2 3 6.5 19.5

Personation with 
Intent (fraud) 0 1 6.5 6.5 0 0  0.0

Identity Theft 1 1 6.5 6.5 0 0  0.0

Report Content Last Updated: Report generated by: Report generated on:
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 11:52:17 AM
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Calls For Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report

McDougall
July to September - 2021

Billing Categories
(Billing categories below do not match 
traditional crime groupings)

2021  2020

July to 
September

Year to 
Date

Time 
Standard

Year To Date 
Weighted Hours

July to 
September

Year to 
Date

Time 
Standard

Year To Date 
Weighted Hours

Property 
Crime 
Violations

Mischief - master 
code 2 4 6.5 26.0 1 3 6.5 19.5

Property Damage 2 2 6.5 13.0 0 0  0.0

Total 12 29 6.5 188.5 8 21 6.5 136.5

Other Criminal 
Code 
Violations 
(Excluding 
traffic)

Bail Violations - Fail 
To Comply 0 2 7.8 15.6 2 5 7.8 39.0

Indecent acts -Other 0 1 7.8 7.8 0 0  0.0

Child Pornography -
Other 0 1 7.8 7.8 0 0  0.0

Child Pornography - 
Making or distributing 0 0  0.0 0 1 7.8 7.8

Trespass at Night 0 0  0.0 1 1 7.8 7.8

Breach of Probation 0 0  0.0 0 2 7.8 15.6

Animals - Others 0 0  0.0 1 1 7.8 7.8

Total 0 4 7.8 31.2 4 10 7.8 78.0

Drug 
Possession

Possession Heroin 0 1 6.5 6.5 0 0  0.0

Total 0 1 6.5 6.5 0 0  0.0

Statutes & 
Acts

Landlord/Tenant 0 6 3.4 20.4 1 2 3.4 6.8

Mental Health Act 1 1 3.4 3.4 2 3 3.4 10.2

Mental Health Act - 
No contact with 
Police

0 1 3.4 3.4 0 0  0.0

Mental Health Act - 
Attempt Suicide 1 1 3.4 3.4 0 0  0.0

Mental Health Act - 
Threat of Suicide 2 4 3.4 13.6 0 1 3.4 3.4

Mental Health Act - 
Voluntary Transport 1 5 3.4 17.0 0 1 3.4 3.4

Mental Health Act - 
Placed on Form 0 1 3.4 3.4 0 1 3.4 3.4

Mental Health Act - 
Apprehension 1 1 3.4 3.4 0 0  0.0

Trespass To 
Property Act 2 5 3.4 17.0 2 6 3.4 20.4

Total 8 25 3.4 85.0 5 14 3.4 47.6

Operational Animal - Left in 
Vehicle 1 1 3.6 3.6 0 0  0.0

Animal Stray 0 1 3.6 3.6 0 2 3.6 7.2

Animal Injured 0 4 3.6 14.4 1 1 3.6 3.6

Animal - Other 1 2 3.6 7.2 0 0  0.0

Domestic 
Disturbance 1 7 3.6 25.2 5 16 3.6 57.6

Suspicious Person 3 9 3.6 32.4 2 4 3.6 14.4

Phone -Nuisance - 
No Charges Laid 0 1 3.6 3.6 0 0  0.0

Report Content Last Updated: Report generated by: Report generated on:
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 11:52:17 AM

Page 2 of 4



Calls For Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report

McDougall
July to September - 2021

Billing Categories
(Billing categories below do not match 
traditional crime groupings)

2021  2020

July to 
September

Year to 
Date

Time 
Standard

Year To Date 
Weighted Hours

July to 
September

Year to 
Date

Time 
Standard

Year To Date 
Weighted Hours

Operational Fire - Building 0 1 3.6 3.6 0 0  0.0

Missing Person 12 & 
older 0 1 3.6 3.6 0 0  0.0

Missing Person 
Located Under 12 1 1 3.6 3.6 0 1 3.6 3.6

Missing Person 
Located 12 & older 0 0  0.0 0 2 3.6 7.2

Noise Complaint -
Master code 2 2 3.6 7.2 2 3 3.6 10.8

Noise Complaint - 
Others 1 2 3.6 7.2 0 1 3.6 3.6

Found Property -
Master code 3 4 3.6 14.4 3 4 3.6 14.4

Found-Household 
Property 1 1 3.6 3.6 0 0  0.0

Found-
Radio,TV,Sound-
Reprod. Equip.

0 1 3.6 3.6 0 0  0.0

Lost Property -
Master code 1 1 3.6 3.6 0 0  0.0

Lost-Personal 
Accessories 0 0  0.0 1 1 3.6 3.6

Lost-
Radio,TV,Sound-
Reprod. Equip.

0 0  0.0 1 1 3.6 3.6

Sudden Death - 
Accidental 0 0  0.0 0 1 3.6 3.6

Sudden Death - 
Natural Causes 0 3 3.6 10.8 1 2 3.6 7.2

Suspicious Vehicle 3 9 3.6 32.4 1 8 3.6 28.8

Trouble with Youth 0 2 3.6 7.2 3 7 3.6 25.2

Unwanted Persons 1 2 3.6 7.2 1 2 3.6 7.2

Neighbour Dispute 5 19 3.6 68.4 4 11 3.6 39.6

By-Law -Master code 0 0  0.0 1 1 3.6 3.6

Other Municipal By-
Laws 0 0  0.0 1 2 3.6 7.2

Assist Public 3 12 3.6 43.2 1 4 3.6 14.4

Distressed/Overdue 
Motorist 0 1 3.6 3.6 0 0  0.0

Family Dispute 2 12 3.6 43.2 6 12 3.6 43.2

Total 29 99 3.6 356.4 34 86 3.6 309.6

Operational2 False Alarm -Others 3 3 1.3 3.9 4 9 1.3 11.7

Keep the Peace 1 4 1.3 5.2 0 4 1.3 5.2

911 call / 911 hang 
up 0 5 1.3 6.5 4 14 1.3 18.2

Report Content Last Updated: Report generated by: Report generated on:
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 11:52:17 AM
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Calls For Service (CFS) Billing Summary Report

McDougall
July to September - 2021

Billing Categories
(Billing categories below do not match 
traditional crime groupings)

2021  2020

July to 
September

Year to 
Date

Time 
Standard

Year To Date 
Weighted Hours

July to 
September

Year to 
Date

Time 
Standard

Year To Date 
Weighted Hours

Operational2 911 call - Dropped 
Cell 2 4 1.3 5.2 1 7 1.3 9.1

Total 6 16 1.3 20.8 9 34 1.3 44.2

Traffic MVC (MOTOR 
VEHICLE 
COLLISION) -Master 
code

0 0  0.0 0 1 3.4 3.4

MVC - Personal 
Injury (MOTOR 
VEHICLE 
COLLISION)

2 3 3.4 10.2 0 1 3.4 3.4

MVC - Prop. Dam. 
Non Reportable 0 0  0.0 0 3 3.4 10.2

MVC - Prop. Dam. 
Reportable (MOTOR 
VEHICLE 
COLLISION)

9 13 3.4 44.2 3 12 3.4 40.8

MVC - Prop. Dam. 
Failed to Remain 
(MOTOR VEHICLE 
COLLISION)

1 2 3.4 6.8 0 0  0.0

Total 12 18 3.4 61.2 3 17 3.4 57.8

Total 71 200 877.6 70 199 945.7

Note to Detachment Commanders:


●
The content of each report is to be shared by the Detachment Commander only with the municipality for which it was generated. 
The municipality may treat this as a public document and distribute it as they wish.

●
All data is sourced from the Niche RMS application. Included are 'reported' occurrences  (actuals and unfounded occurrences) for 'billable' 
occurrences ONLY. Data is refreshed on a weekly basis.

●
The Traffic category includes motor vehicle collision (MVC) occurrences entered into Niche (UCR code 8521). MVCs are NOT sourced 
from the eCRS application for this report.

●
Only the primary violation is counted within an occurrence.
●
Time standards displayed are for the 2021 billing period.





Note to Municipalities:


●
Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police continues to 
investigate and solve crime.

●
This report is NOT to be used for crime trend analysis as not all occurrences are included.
●
Data groupings within this report do not match traditional crime groupings seen in other public reports such as the OPP Police Services 

Board reports or Statistics Canada reporting.
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2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 11:52:17 AM

Page 4 of 4



From: MECP Land Policy (MECP)
To: MECP Land Policy (MECP)
Subject: Decision on the Proposed Land Use Compatibility Guideline
Date: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 2:39:50 PM

Good afternoon,
 
Ontario is committed to preventing negative impacts from conflicting land uses within
communities, such as the effects of industrial noise and odour pollution on residential
areas.
 
On May 4, 2021, Ontario proposed changes to the current land use compatibility
guidelines (“D-Series guidelines”) that municipalities and other planning authorities
use when making land use planning decisions. The proposed changes aimed to
update, renew and consolidate our land use compatibility guidelines to help ensure
proper compatibility studies are completed before new sensitive land uses, such as
residences, are built near existing major facilities (including industries or industrial
areas), and vice versa.
                                                          
During the 94-day consultation period, the ministry received over 500 comments. In
response to the comments received, the ministry has decided to not move forward
with this version of the proposed Land Use Compatibility Guideline. The current D-
Series guidelines for land use compatibility will remain in effect and will continue to be
the provincial guidelines referenced in the Provincial Policy Statement, 2020 and A
Place to Grow: Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe land use compatibility
policies.
 
Should the Ministry decide to update the D-Series, any potential future update will be
posted to the Environmental Registry as a proposal for consultation. To review the
decision notice for this proposal, please see the Environmental Registry at
http://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-2785.
 
Please pass this information along to colleagues, members of your organization,
other organizations, and anyone else that may be interested.
 
If you have any questions, please e-mail mecp.landpolicy@ontario.ca.
 
Sincerely,
 
Original Signed by:
 
Robyn Kurtes
Director, Environmental Policy Branch
Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks

mailto:MECP.LandPolicy@ontario.ca
mailto:MECP.LandPolicy@ontario.ca
http://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-2785
mailto:mecp.landpolicy@ontario.ca


ROMA is Seeking Your Input!
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ROMA Update not displaying correctly? View the online version 
Add Communicate@amo.on.ca to your safe list

October 14, 2021

Have Your Say!
ROMA Survey on the Future of Rural Ontario

 
 

In June of this year, ROMA initiated a process to develop a discussion paper that will
consider the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on rural Ontario. This includes
identifying both the challenges and the opportunities and to create a plan to not only
recover from the pandemic but also to put rural Ontario on a much stronger footing in
the decade ahead.

The discussion paper examining opportunities for rural Ontario in a post-COVID world
will summarize the issues and opportunities for rural Ontario and be the foundation for
identifying priorities and actions for ROMA’s advocacy.

ROMA has developed a survey for your input on forming these priorities and potential
actions that will be captured in this important work. ROMA is eager to hear your
perspectives and suggestions so please take a few minutes to answer the 10
questions in this survey.

The deadline to complete the survey is 4:00 pm Friday, October 29, 2021.

 

Thank you for your input into this important work.

*DISCLAIMER:   Any documents attached are final versions.  ROMA assumes no responsibility for any discrepancies that may have been

transmitted with this electronic version.   The printed versions of the documents stand as the official record.

 

 

Please consider the environment
before printing this.

Rural Ontario Association (ROMA) 
200 University Ave. Suite 801,Toronto ON Canada M5H 3C6

If you wish to Opt-Out of ROMA Updates please click here

 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/XWFMX5X
http://amo.informz.ca/AMO/pages/ROMA_Updates_Opt_Out_Forum?_zs=l0AHN1zqvd6&_zmi=
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Ministry of Northern Development, 
Mines, Natural Resources and 
Forestry 
 
Policy Division 

Director’s Office 
Crown Forests and Lands Policy Branch 
70 Foster Drive, Suite 400 
Sault Ste. Marie, ON P6A 6V5 
 

Ministère du Développement du Nord, des 
Mines, des Richesses naturelles et des 
Forêts 
 
Division de la politique 
 
Bureau du directeur 
Direction des politiques relatives aux stratégies 
et aux affaires autochtones 
300, rue Foster, 3e étage Nord                                                                                                                                                            
Sault Sainte Marie, ON P6A 6V5 

 

 

October 7, 2021 

Re: Proposed amendments to the Crown Forest Sustainability Act, 1994, Professional 
Foresters Act, 2000 and the Public Lands Act, Ministry of Northern Development, 
Mines, Natural Resources and Forestry included in the Supporting People and 
Businesses Act, 2021  

Greetings, 

On October 7, the Minister of Economic Development, Job Creation and Trade 
introduced the proposed Supporting People and Businesses Act, 2021 in the Ontario 
Legislature. As part of this Bill, the Ministry of Northern Development, Mines, Natural 
Resources and Forestry (NDMNRF) proposed legislative changes to three statutes. 
These proposed changes are intended to support the government’s commitment to 
reduce regulatory burden on business, and modernize government to be simpler, faster, 
and more cost-effective, without compromising public health, safety and the 
environment. The proposed changes include the following: 

Crown Forest Sustainability Act, 1994  

Proposed amendments to the Crown Forest Sustainability Act, 1994 would enable 
streamlined authorizations for personal use harvesting, including fuelwood, building 
products and Christmas trees. These authorizations would be available once 
regulations are in place prescribing the terms and conditions that may apply to personal 
use harvesting. If these proposed amendments are enacted, the ministry will consult 
with the public, stakeholders and municipalities about any subsequent regulations 
proposed to implement them. 

Professional Foresters Act, 2000: 

Proposed amendments are intended to modify the scope of practice to better define 
what professional forestry is and reduce the overlap with other occupations (e.g., 
arborists, biologists). 
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Public Lands Act:  

The proposed amendments to the Public Lands Act would: 

1. Provide the Minister explicit authority to set, charge, waive, change, or refund 
fees related to the management, use or disposition of public lands to provide for 
a more efficient approvals process.  

2. Provide the Minister explicit authority to make public lands-related decisions that 
currently rest with the Lieutenant Governor in Council (LGIC) to reduce the time 
needed for approvals. 

3. Prevent the loss of public lands without the Crown’s consent and for less than fair 
market value due to adverse possession by third parties, including providing the 
Minister with any necessary related authorities. 

4. Allow dispositions or transfers of lands bordering water bodies where less than 
25 per cent of frontage would remain public land to support Indigenous 
community interests, land claim settlements, and local community and economic 
development. These proposed amendments are not intended to significantly 
increase dispositions along water bodies and the ministry will still be required to 
undertake any applicable environmental assessment process and fulfill the duty 
to consult obligations, should they arise, prior to making any individual land 
disposition decision. 

If the proposed amendments are passed by the legislature, they would improve clarity, 
customer service and reduce unnecessary burdens, resulting in a more effective and 
less time-consuming approvals process. 

Additional information on all the proposals is also provided in the Appendix. 

These proposed changes appear in the Supporting People and Businesses Act, 2021 
that is currently before the Legislature. The Legislature will determine the next steps 
associated with the Bill. The following link provides additional details on the status of the 
Bill (Bill 13, Supporting People and Businesses Act, 2021 - Legislative Assembly of 
Ontario (ola.org). 

In addition, details regarding the proposed amendments to the Crown Forest 
Sustainability Act, Professional Foresters Act and Public Lands Act are available on the 
Environmental Registry of Ontario (ERO) and on the Regulatory Registry. You can 
review the relevant bulletins/postings and provide comments using the following links: 

 

 

https://www.ola.org/en/legislative-business/bills/parliament-42/session-2/bill-13
https://www.ola.org/en/legislative-business/bills/parliament-42/session-2/bill-13
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Crown Forest Sustainability Act  

ERO: Proposed amendments to the Crown Forest Sustainability Act to Reduce Red-
Tape for the harvest of Crown forest resources for personal use  

Regulatory Registry: Proposed amendments to the Crown Forest Sustainability Act to 
Reduce Red-Tape for the harvest of Crown forest resources for personal use  

Professional Foresters Act  

ERO: Proposed amendments to the Professional Foresters Act  

Regulatory Registry: Proposed amendments to the Professional Foresters Act 

Public Lands Act   

ERO: Amendments to the Public Lands Act to Support Red Tape Reduction 

Regulatory Registry: Proposal to amend the Public Lands Act to support red tape 
reduction  

If you have any questions or would like to arrange a meeting to discuss the proposals in 
further detail please contact Amanda McLachlan at Amanda.Mclachlan@ontario.ca for 
Crown Forest Sustainability Act and Professional Foresters Act and please contact Josh 
Annett at Josh.Annett@ontario.ca for Public Lands Act.  

Sincerely, 

Original signed by 

 
Peter Henry 
Director, Crown Forests and Lands Policy Branch 
Policy Division   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-4351
https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-4351
https://www.ontariocanada.com/registry/view.do?postingId=39067&language=en
https://www.ontariocanada.com/registry/view.do?postingId=39067&language=en
https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-4429
https://www.ontariocanada.com/registry/view.do?postingId=39068&language=en
https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-4403
https://www.ontariocanada.com/registry/view.do?postingId=38807&language=en
https://www.ontariocanada.com/registry/view.do?postingId=38807&language=en
mailto:Amanda.Mclachlan@ontario.ca
mailto:Josh.Annett@ontario.ca
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Appendix: Additional Information on the Proposed Amendments  

 
Crown Forest Sustainability Act, 1994 
 
NDMNRF is proposing amendments to the Crown Forest Sustainability Act, 1994 to 
improve service delivery and save people time when seeking approval to harvest wood 
from Crown lands for personal use, such as firewood, building products and Christmas 
trees.  
 
Currently, the licensing requirements to harvest Crown forest resources for personal, 
non-commercial use are the same as the licensing requirements for industrial or 
commercial use. The Ministry’s proposed changes would distinguish authorization 
requirements for wood harvested from Crown lands for personal use from 
industrial/commercial use. This would make the approval process easier for clients, 
forest industry and government. 

The proposed changes would if enacted by the Legislature, enable the ministry to:  

• Streamline authorization requirements, 
• Create clear and consistent program delivery across the province, 
• Reduce administrative burden, staff time and effort for government, 
• Improve access by making applications available online, and 
• Remove burden of developing overlapping agreements for forest industry. 

Before the proposed amendments could be implemented, regulations would be required 
prescribing the terms and conditions applicable to personal use harvesting. 
 
If the proposed amendments are passed by the legislature, the Ministry will consult with 
the public, stakeholders and municipalities about any subsequent regulation proposals 
developed to implement them.  
 
Professional Foresters Act, 2000 
 
The purpose of the Professional Foresters Act is to regulate the practice of professional 
forestry and provide the Ontario Professional Foresters Association (OPFA) the ability 
to govern its members in accordance with the Act, the regulation and the by-laws in 
order that the public interest may be served and protected. 
 
In response to requests from the Ontario Professional Foresters Association, we are 
proposing changes to the PFA that would enhance the ability of the OPFA to provide 
oversight of its members by adding clarity to the practice of foresters, while limiting the 
potential impacts to other natural resource professionals (e.g., arborists) and municipal 
delivery of forest management programs and services. 
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Public Lands Act 

1. Shifting certain decision-making authority regarding public lands to the Minister of 
NDMNRF from the Lieutenant Governor in Council. 

Most public lands related decisions rest with the Minister of NDMNRF, however, 
some are made by the Lieutenant Governor in Council through an Order in Council. 
The Order in Council process takes time and has resulted in delays for clients 
awaiting decisions. Providing the following authorities to the Minister would be 
consistent with most other Minister authorities for the planning, management, and 
dispositions of public lands under the Act:  

i. Setting apart areas of public lands for any purpose that will benefit research in 
and the management, use and administration of public lands and forests. 

iii. Approving the disposal of public land to Ministry officers or employees (while 
meeting obligations set out in O. Reg. 381/07 regarding conflict of interest 
rules for public servants under the Public Service of Ontario Act). 

iv. Releasing a habendum restriction in letters patent, (i.e., removing a restriction 
that the land must be used for a specific purpose, such as for 
school purposes).   

v. Releasing a condition in an Order in Council which requires, where the 
management of public lands was transferred to the federal government, that 
the lands be returned to Ontario if the federal government is no longer using 
the land.  

vi. Releasing other restrictions in letters patents (e.g., a requirement 
that Lieutenant Governor in Council provide approval for a 
landowner to sell their land).  

2. Allowing limited exemptions from requirement for Minster to set apart public reserves 
on water bodies. 

Section 3 of the Public Lands Act sets out that where 25 per cent or more of the 
frontage on a waterbody is public lands that the Minister shall set apart at least 25 
per cent of the lands, to a depth determined by the Minister, for public recreation and 
access. On water bodies where less than 25 per cent of the frontage is public lands, 
all remaining public lands are to be set aside for such purposes. 

The proposed amendments would provide certain exemptions to the Public Lands 
Act Section 3 requirements, and ensure that the following would not be prevented: 

i. Directing a disposition or ordering a transfer of control to implement an 
agreement with an Indigenous community. This may include transfers to the 
federal government to support land claims or additions to reserve or direct 
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sales to an incorporated Indigenous community-run organization for 
community or economic development initiatives. 

ii. Ordering the transfer to the federal government (or its agencies) of control of 
public lands. In addition to land claims or additions to reserve the federal 
government may require public lands for infrastructure projects or for the 
creation of protected areas. 

iii. Ordering the transfer to other provincial ministries (or their agencies) of 
control of public lands. Provincial government ministries may require public 
lands for infrastructure projects or for expansion of protected areas. 

iv. Directing a disposition to a municipality. Municipalities may require lands to 
support community or economic development initiatives such as waterfront 
improvement (i.e., trails, tourism attractions). 

This proposal for Public Lands Act Section 3 is not intended to significantly increase 
dispositions along water bodies and the ministry will still be required to undertake any 
applicable environmental assessment process and fulfill the duty to consult prior to 
making any individual land disposition or transfer decisions. 

3. Preventing adverse possession of public lands through unauthorized use, 
possession, or occupation.  

Individuals may obtain possessory title to public lands after 60 years of adverse 
possession (i.e., unauthorized tenancy or “squatting”). This prevents 
the Province from preserving public lands for uses including economic development 
and environmental protection, receiving fair value for lands through sale or lease, 
and the efficient settlement of Indigenous land claims. Further details include:  

i. Proposed changes to the Act would prevent any person from acquiring an 
interest in public lands through use, possession or occupation of the lands 
without permission from the Province (i.e., unauthorized tenancy or 
“squatting”).  

ii. Persons who can demonstrate possessory title to public land (60+ years of 
adverse possession) prior to any change being made would not be impacted. 

iii. The ministry would continue to process quit claim letters patent applications 
for persons in these circumstances. 

iv. The proposed changes would provide the Minister with the authority to correct 
registrations or deposits against public lands that have been made without 
the Province’s permission.  
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v. Eliminating adverse possession would prevent limitations on the availability of 
land for exercising Aboriginal and treaty rights and settling land claims.   

4. Clarifying Minister’s authority to manage fees for all services, permissions, or 
decisions. 

The proposed change clarifies that the Minister has explicit authority to set, charge, 
waive, change, or refund fees for all services, permissions or decisions related to the 
management, use or disposition of public lands. No new fees or changes to existing 
fees are being proposed or would result if this proposal is passed.  

If the proposed changes to the legislation are enacted, the Ministry would 
update O.Reg.326/94 (Crown land camping permit) and O.Reg.975 (Work 
Permits) to ensure these regulations align with the changes made to the Public 
Lands Act. 
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Legislative Services 

111 Erie Street North 
Leamington, ON N8H 2Z9 

519-326-5761  
clerks@leamington.ca  

 
 
October 8, 2021 
 
 
To Whom it May Concern: 
 
Please be advised that the Council of The Corporation of the Municipality of 
Leamington, at its meeting held Tuesday, September 14, 2021 enacted the following 
resolution: 
 

No. C-279-21 

WHEREAS residents and staff at long-term care (LTC) homes have been 
disproportionately affected by COVID-19; and  
 
WHEREAS in the first wave of the pandemic (March - July 2020) there were 
approximately 5,488 resident cases and 2,290 staff cases in Ontario and tragically 
1,817 residents and seven staff lost their lives to this disease; and  
 
WHEREAS on 15 April 2020, Premier Ford stated, “we will stop at nothing to protect 
those who cannot protect themselves. Today we are launching an all-out plan to fight 
COVID-19 in our long-term care homes. We will fortify the iron ring of protection 
around our long-term care residents and those who care for them. We’ll go further in 
our testing, screening, surveillance, targeting the homes facing outbreaks”; and  
 
WHEREAS there have been approximately 9,417 resident cases and 4,217 staff 
cases in Ontario in the second wave (2 September 2020-16 February 2021) and 
1,869 residents and three staff lost their lives, representing an increase of resident 
deaths from the first to second wave; and  
 
WHEREAS for-profit LTC homes have seen a disproportionate incidence of care 
failing to meet the standard of the Long-Term Care Act, which states that “…a long- 
term care home is primarily the home of its residents and is to be operated so that it 
is a place where they may live with dignity and in security, safety and comfort and 
have their physical, psychological, social, spiritual and cultural needs adequately 
met”; and 
 
WHEREAS the Canadian Armed Forces (CAF) report dated 20 May 2020 revealed 
conditions including inadequate staffing levels and training, limited medical supplies, 
unsafe medication administration, insufficient procedures to reduce the spread of 

mailto:clerks@leamington.ca
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COVID-19, poor infection prevention and control standards of practice, deficiencies 
in infrastructure and significant concerns about standards of care including seniors 
calling out for help, rotting food, missed meals, seniors left in soiled diapers and 
linens and cockroach and bug infestations; and  
 
WHEREAS similar conditions were found in the second wave, including ongoing 
shortages of qualified, trained staff, ineffective use of PPE to prevent COVID-19 
transmission, violation of protocols and practices including one instance in which 
residents who had tested positive for COVID-19 had their door handles removed, 
physical distancing and isolation challenges from continuing to house several 
residents in ward rooms with a shared bathroom and ongoing infection prevention 
and control standard concerns, all problems that were not fixed after the 
recommendations of the CAF;  
 
WHEREAS the Provincial Government has launched an independent commission to 
investigate COVID-19 spread within LTC homes, how residents, staff and families 
were impacted and the adequacy of measures taken by the province and other 
parties to prevent, isolate and contain the spread; and  
 
WHEREAS the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) has provided a Board- 
approved submission, Improving the Long-Term Care Outbreak Response in 
Ontario: Submission to the Long-Term Care COVID-19 Commission, on 29 January 
2021, outlining recommendations to the Commission on behalf of the municipal 
governments that operate 100 of the 626 long-term care homes in Ontario; and  
 
WHEREAS AMO’s submission puts forward 48 recommendations for action in both 
public and private long-term care homes across nine themes: Vision for Long-Term 
Care and Leadership Culture, Public Health and Safety, Planning and 
Communications, Staffing Measures, Care for Residents, Funding, Inspections - 
Enforcement and Compliance, and Mental Health and Well-Being; and  
 
WHEREAS one of the key recommendations of the AMO submission is that the 
Ministry of Long-Term Care and Ministry of Health review the adequacy of infection 
prevention and control programs under the Long-Term Care Homes Act, 2007 in 
preventing and managing COVID-19 outbreaks, and to institute higher standards 
with increased funding to homes to implement these standards; and  
 
WHEREAS the Canada Health Act’s aim is to protect, promote and restore the 
physical and mental well-being of residents of Canada, and that the Federal 
Government provides health care funding to Provinces and Territories through the 
Canada Health Transfer; and  
 
WHEREAS the Federal Government does not currently provide funding earmarked 
to support the LTC home sector, and;  
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WHEREAS the Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) works with and 
advocates to the Federal Government to secure new tools and empower 
municipalities to build stronger communities; and  
 
WHEREAS the operation of LTC homes is a municipal responsibility in Ontario but is 
of significance to the federal-municipal relationship.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:  
 
THAT Leamington Municipal Council endorses AMO’s recommendations contained 
in its submission to the Long-Term Care COVID-19 Commission;  
 
THAT Leamington Municipal Council strongly urges the Provincial Government to 
move forward with implementation of these recommendations, including instituting 
higher standards with increased funding to homes to implement those standards; 
 
THAT Leamington Municipal Council advocate to the Federal Government to 
enhance federal health care funding to the Provinces and Territories, specifically 
dedicating funding to long- term care, and to undertake further efforts to protect, 
promote and restore the physical and mental well-being of long-term care residents 
in Canada;  
 
THAT Leamington Municipal Council request the FCM to develop a policy and 
advocacy position on enhanced federal support for long-term care;  
 
THAT this resolution be sent to the Prime Minister of Canada, the Premier of Ontario, 
the Federal and Provincial Ministers of Health, and FCM for their immediate action 
and that a copy be sent to AMO, and Windsor-Essex Members of Parliament and 
Provincial Parliament for their information;  
 
AND that a copy of this resolution be sent to all Ontario upper-tier and single-tier 
municipalities for their endorsement. 

Carried  
 
Dated today, the 8th day of October, 2021. 
 
 
______________________________ 
Brenda Percy, Clerk 
The Corporation of the Municipality of Leamington 
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF PARRY SOUND
RESOLUTION IN COUNCIL

DIVISION LIST

Councillor V. BACKMAN
Councillor P. BORNEMAN
Councillor R. BURDEN
Councillor B. HORNE
Councillor B. KEITH
Councillor D. McCANN
Mayor J. McGARyi

N0. 2021- ( ZT

YES N0 DATE:October5,2021

MOVED BY:

CARRIED: 1

SECONDED BY:

"^ y^j^.

DEFEATED: Postponed to:

Whereas the Robinson-Huron Treaty 1850 is a political and economic agreement

between First Nations signatories and the Crown; and

Whereas the Ontario Superior Court has found that the Crown has a mandatory and
reviewable obligation to increase the Treaties' annuities when the economic

circumstances warrant reflecting a fair share ofthe value ofthe net Crown resource-

based revenues generated from the territory; and

Whereas the Canadian Federal Government has confirmed that it is prepared to enter

into negotiations to settle ongoing annuities litigation out-of-court, contingent upon the

provincial government committing similarly to negotiations and settlement; and

Whereas the Ontario Provincial Government has entered an appeal against the Ontario

Superior Court's decision; and

Whereas the Town of Parry Sound resides within the boundaries ofthe Robinson-Huron

Treaty and values its relationships with First Nations neighbours;

Now Therefore the Town of Parry Sound does hereby request the Ontario Provincial

Government to withdraw its appeal, enter into good-faith negotiations and commit to

settle out-of-court the ongoing annuities litigation; and

...2



That this resolution be forwarded to the Attorney General of Ontario and the following

organizations and individuals requesting their support: municipalities ofWest Nipissing,

Greater Sudbury, Espanola, North Bay, Northeastern Manitoulin, Blind River, and Sault

Ste Marie within the Robinson-Huron TreatyArea; municipalities within the West Parry

Sound District; District of Parry Sound Municipal Association; Association of

Municipalities of Ontario (AMO); MPP Norm Miller.



 

Notice of the  

Annual Information Meeting 

District of Parry Sound West (Belvedere Heights)  

Corporation 

October 7, 2021 

7:00 p.m. 

via Zoom 
 

Agenda  

1. Welcome 

 

2. Board Chair and Administrators Report 

 

3. Audited Financial Statements for the financial years ended December 31, 2020 – H. Stephenson 

 

4. Constitution & By-Laws (2011) 

 

5. Campus of Care Report – A. Coles 

 

6. Municipal Levy – A. Coles 

 

7.  Benefits of Consultation Agreement – J. Hanna 

 

8.  COVID-19 Response – K. Johnson 

 

9. Adjournment 
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KPMG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent  
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.  
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of District of Parry Sound (West) Belvedere Heights Home For 
The Aged - Community Support Services  

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements District of Parry Sound (West) Belvedere 
Heights Home For The Aged - Community Support Services, (the “Entity”) which comprise: 

• the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2021 

• the statement of operations and changes in fund balances for the year ended 

• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended 

• and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies  

(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”) 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Entity as at March 31, 2021, and its results of 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public 
sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 
standards.  Our responsibility under those standards are further described in the 
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our 
auditors’ report. 

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance 
for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, 
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, internal 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to the events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditors’ report.  However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Entity’s to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

 

 
 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
 
Sudbury, Canada 
June 21, 2021 

 

 



DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED -
COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

2021 2020

Assets
Cash $ 53,872          $ 21,814          
Accounts receivable 25,488          40,768          
Receivable from Belvedere Heights Home for the Aged -                1,007            
HST recoverable 10,014          22,479          

89,374          86,068          

Capital assets 112,450        59,856          
Less: accumulated amortization 22,031          11,283          

90,419          48,573          

$ 179,793        $ 134,641        

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 40,317          $ 29,952          
Accrued vacation pay 11,810          11,146          
Payable to the Ministry of Long-Term Care 8,490            8,490            
Deferred revenue - fundraising 36,940          36,480          

97,557          86,068          

Deferred capital contributions 104,956        59,856          
Less: accumulated amortization 22,031          11,283          

82,925          48,573          

Fund balance (689)              -                

$ 179,793        $ 134,641        

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

________________________________ Director ________________________________ Director
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DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED -
COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES

Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance

Year ended March 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

2021 2021 2020
Budget Total Total

Revenue:
Ministry of Long-Term Care $ 332,669     $ 332,669       $ 332,669        
Client recoveries 274,485     134,059       301,260        
COVID Funding 18,710       54,680         -                
Amortization of deferred capital contributions -             10,748         5,397            
Other -             46                11,328          

625,864     532,202       650,654        

Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 230,063     207,167       222,870        
Travel 191,264     90,342         203,702        
Meals 67,923       91,635         71,206          
Office and general 30,000       29,890         53,299          
Exercise and Falls Prevention 31,615       18,456         30,990          
Volunteer training 14,550       2,680           10,579          
Building occupancy 19,780       19,780         17,055          
Administration 15,960       15,200         17,561          
Amortization of capital assets -             10,748         5,397            
Insurance 6,000         9,021           3,795            
Materials and supplies -             35,986         2,939            
Advertising -             1,966           -                
Adopt-a-senior -             -              10,458          
Bad debt -             20                -                
Interest and legal -             -              73                 

607,155     532,891       649,924        

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses
before the undernoted item 18,709       (689)            730               

Repayable to Ministry of Long-Term Care -             -              (730)              

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 18,709       (689)            -                

Fund balance, beginning of year -             -              -                

Fund balance, end of year $ 18,709       $ (689)            $ -                

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED -
COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

2021 2020

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ (689)            $ -                
Items not involving cash:

Amortization of deferred capital contributions (10,748)       (5,397)           
Amortization of capital assets 10,748        5,397            

(689)            -                
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:

Decrease in trade receivables 15,280        2,190            
Decrease in HST recoverable 12,465        23,372          
Decrease (increase) in receivable from Belvedere Heights 
   Home for the Aged 1,007          (1,007)           
Increase (decrease) in payable to Belvedere Heights 
   Home for the Aged -              (29,087)         
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10,365        (13,654)         
Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation pay 664             (2,376)           
Decrease in payable to Ministry of Long-Term Care -              (44,224)         
Decrease in prepaid expenses -              1,199            
Increase in deferred revenue - fundraising 460             3,082            

39,552        (60,505)         

Capital activities:
Proceeds from deferred capital contributions 45,100        59,856          

(52,594)       (59,856)         
(7,494)         -                

Net increase (decrease) in cash 32,058        (60,505)         

Cash, beginning of year 21,814        82,319          

Cash, end of year $ 53,872        $ 21,814          

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Purchase of capital assets
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DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST) 
BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE 
AGED - COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Year ended March 31, 2021 
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District of Parry Sound (West) Belvedere Heights Home for the Aged - Community Support Services 
(the "Organization") is a non-profit organization providing volunteer supported programs to the 
community to foster health and independence for the sick and disabled. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The financial statements of the Organization are the representations of management prepared in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for local governments as 
recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered Professional 
Accountants of Canada.  The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies 
followed in the preparation of these financial statements: 

(a) Accrual basis of accounting: 

Sources of revenue and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  

The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenue as it becomes available and 
measurable; expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of 
receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 

(b) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  

(c) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the periods 
specified.  Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include valuation 
allowances for receivables.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  These 
estimates are reviewed periodically, and, as adjustments become necessary, they are 
reported in earnings in the year in which they become known. 

2. Financial risks: 

(a) Liquidity risk: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Organization will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely   
basis or at a reasonable cost.  The Organization manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its 
operating requirements to ensure it has sufficient funds to fulfill its obligations.  The 
Organization prepares budgets and cash forecasts to ensure it has sufficient funds to fulfill its 
obligations.  There has been no change to the risk exposure from 2020. 

(b) Credit risk: 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations 
resulting in a financial loss.  The Organization is exposed to credit risk with respect to the 
accounts receivable.  The Organization assesses, on a continuous basis, accounts 
receivable and provides for any amounts that are collectible in the allowance for doubtful 
accounts. 



 

DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST) 
BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE 
AGED - COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Year ended March 31, 2021 
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2. Financial risks (continued): 

(c) Other risks: 

The Corporation’s main sources of revenue are from funding. In March 2020, the COVID-19 
outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization.  This resulted in the 
Canadian and Provincial governments enacting emergency measures to combat the spread 
of the virus.  

The impact of COVID-19 is expected to negatively impact operations for a duration that 
cannot be reasonably predicted.   The further overall operational and financial impact is 
highly dependent on the duration of COVID-19, including the potential occurrence of 
additional waves of the pandemic, and could be affected by other factors that are currently 
not known at this time.  Management is actively monitoring the effect of the pandemic on its 
financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, and workforce.  Given the daily evolution 
of the pandemic and the global responses to curb its spread, the Organization is not able to 
fully estimate the effects of the pandemic on its results of operations, financial condition, or 
liquidity at this time. 
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Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The accompanying financial statements of District of Parry Sound (West) Belvedere Heights Home For 

The Aged (the "Home") are the responsibility of the Home's management and have been prepared in 

compliance with legislation, and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for local 

governments established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of Chartered Professional 

Accountants of Canada.  A summary of the significant accounting policies are described in note 1 to 

the financial statements.  The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of 

estimates based on management's judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current 

accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods. 

The Home's management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable 

assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in 

compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available 

on a timely basis for preparation of the financial statements.  These systems are monitored and 

evaluated by Management. 

The audit committee meets with Management and the external auditors to review the financial 

statements and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their 

approval of the financial statements. 

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent external auditors appointed 

by the Home.  The accompanying Auditors' Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their 

examination and their opinion on the Home's financial statements. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Johnson 

Administrator 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of the District of Parry Sound (West) 
Belvedere Heights Home For the Aged 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of District of Parry Sound (West) Belvedere 
Heights Home For The Aged, (the “Home”) which comprise: 

• the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020 
• the statement of operations and accumulated surplus for the year then ended 
• the statement of changes in net financial assets for the year then ended 
• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended 
• and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies  

(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”) 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Home as at December 31, 2020, and its results 
of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 
standards.  Our responsibility under those standards are further described in the 
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of 
our auditors’ report. 

We are independent of the Home in accordance with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled 
our other responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

 



 
 
 

 

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Home’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Home or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Home’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, 
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, internal 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Home’s internal control. 

 



 
 
 

  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to the events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Home’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditors’ report.  However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Home to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
 
Sudbury, Canada 
April 26, 2021 

 

 



DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
  BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

2020 2019

Financial assets

Cash and bank - operating $ 2,909,099    $ 2,812,904      
Cash and bank - capital 692,066       4,288             
Cash and bank - life lease 113,906       92,376           
Guaranteed investment certificates 1                  683,303         
Accounts receivable 404,858       187,041         

4,119,930    3,779,912      

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 821,253       808,835         
Payable to Ministry of Long-Term Care (note 4) 541,209       376,334         
Deferred revenue 185,387       25,135           
Long-term debt (note 5) 794,352       1,175,045      

2,342,201    2,385,349      

Net financial assets 1,777,729    1,394,563      

Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (note 7) 3,119,796    3,959,719      
Prepaid expenses 59,672         41,618           

3,179,468    4,001,337      

Commitments and contingencies (note 11)

Effects of COVID-19 (note 12)

Accumulated surplus (note 6) $ 4,957,197    $ 5,395,900      

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

__________________________________   Director
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DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
  BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

Budget 2020 2019
(note 9)

Revenue:
Ministry of Long-Term Care - current $ 4,680,138    $ 6,052,573    $ 4,624,036    
Ministry of Long-Term Care - capital 382,586       382,586       381,540       
User charges 2,576,465    2,385,088    2,459,862    
Participating municipalities 1,517,189    1,517,189    1,517,191    
Life Lease sales -                  413,600       185,000       
Life Lease maintenance fees 138,096       138,096       132,380       
Miscellaneous 116,147       103,170       105,492       
Interest earned 11,275         19,645         62,553         

Total revenue 9,421,896    11,011,947  9,468,054    

Expenses:

Current Fund Operations (Schedule) 8,948,707    10,012,375  7,902,491    
Capital Fund Operations (Schedule) 892,839       895,257       917,327       
Life Lease Operations (Schedule) 381,379       537,692       302,631       
Reserve Fund Operations (Schedule) -                  5,326           23,422         

10,222,925  11,450,650  9,145,871    

Annual surplus (deficit) (801,029)     (438,703)     322,183       

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 5,395,900    5,395,900    5,073,717    

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 4,594,871    $ 4,957,197    $ 5,395,900    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Total expenses
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DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
  BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

2020 2019

Annual surplus (deficit) $ (438,703)      $ 322,183       

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (26,199)        (145,119)     
Amortization of tangible capital assets 866,122       876,185       

401,220       1,053,249    

Acquisition of prepaid expenses (59,672)        (41,618)       
Use of prepaid expenses 41,618         41,008         

Change in net financial assets 383,166       1,052,639    

Net financial assets, beginning of year 1,394,563    341,924       

Net financial assets, end of year $ 1,777,729    $ 1,394,563    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
  BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Operations:
Annual surplus (deficit) $ (438,703)       $ 322,183       
Item not involving cash:

Amortization of tangible capital assets 866,122        876,185       

427,419        1,198,368    

Change in non-cash working capital:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (217,817)       94,567         
Increase in prepaid expenses (18,054)         (610)             
Increase in accounts payable and
   accrued liabilities 12,418          46,904         
Increase in payable to Ministry of Long-Term Care 164,875        122,364       
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 160,252        (804)             

529,093        1,460,789    

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-term debt (380,693)       (393,748)      

Cash flows from investing activities:
Addition to tangible capital assets (26,199)         (145,119)      

Increase in cash 122,201        921,922       

Cash, beginning of year 3,592,871  2,670,949    

Cash, end of year $ 3,715,072     $ 3,592,871    

Cash consists of:
Cash and bank - operating $ 2,909,099     $ 2,812,904    
Cash and bank - capital 692,066        4,288           
Cash and bank - life lease operations 37,205          (6,169)          
Cash and bank - life lease maintenance reserve 76,701          98,545         
Guaranteed investment certificates 1                   683,303       

$ 3,715,072     $ 3,592,871    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2020 
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1. Significant accounting policies: 

The financial statements of District of Parry Sound (West) Belvedere Heights Home for The Aged 
(the “Home”) are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles for local governments as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting 
Board and the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.  Significant aspects of the 
accounting policies adopted by the Home are as follows: 

(a) Accrual basis of accounting: 

The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and 
measurable; expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of 
receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 

(b) Deposits: 

Deposits represent deposits received on Seniors Life Lease units.  These amounts will be 
recognized as part of the proceeds on the sale of the life leases in the year the unit is sold.   

(c) Ministry of Long-Term Care: 

The Ministry of Long-Term Care undertakes a financial review of the Home’s operations from 
time to time.  Adjustments to the financial statements, if any, as a result of these reviews are 
accounted for in the period when notification is received from the Ministry. 

(d) Reserves and Reserve Funds: 

Certain amounts, as approved by the Home, are set aside in reserves and reserves funds for 
future operating and capital purposes.  Transfers to and from reserves and reserve funds are 
adjusted to the respected fund when approved.   

(e) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost, 
less residual value is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as 
follows: 
 

Asset  Useful Life - Years 
 

Buildings  20 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment  5 - 10 
Computers  5 - 10 
Machinery  5 - 10 
Medical supplies  5 - 10 
 

 



DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)  
BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2020 
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(f) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting periods.  Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the 
carrying amount of tangible capital assets and valuation allowances for accounts receivable.  
Actual results could differ from those estimates.  These estimates are reviewed periodically, 
and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in earnings in the year in which 
they become known. 

2. Participating municipalities: 

The participating municipalities are as follows: 

Town of Parry Sound 
Township of the Archipelago 
Township of Carling 
Township of McDougall 
Township of McKellar 
Township of McMurrich/Monteith 
Township of Seguin 
Township of Whitestone 

3. Structural compliance funding: 

Under the terms of the development agreement with the Ministry of Long-Term Care, the Home 
has a long-term funding contract to receive funding in the amount of $7,631,105 for the 
Redevelopment Project, of which $6,300,215 has been received by year end.  The amount of 
$382,586 (2019 - $381,540) was received in the current year and the balance will be received in 
monthly payments over the next 90 months. 

The agreement is subject to termination by the Ministry if the Home is unable to complete the 
project, breaches any term or condition of the agreement or ceases to operate. 

4. Payable to Ministry of Long-Term Care: 
 

  2020 2019 
 

Payable to Ministry of Long-Term Care   $  541,209 $ 376,334 

The amount recorded as payable for 2020 will be subject to final review by the Ministry. 
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BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2020 
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5. Long-term debt: 
 

  2020 2019 
 

Bank of Nova Scotia, payable in  
monthly blended payments of $26,361, interest at 
2.904% per annum, matures June 25, 2023   $ 762,328 $ 1,052,041 

Bank of Nova Scotia, capital lease payable in monthly 
payments of $4,772, interest at 2.99% per annum,  
matures June 4, 2020 –   28,384 

Bank of Nova Scotia, capital lease payable in monthly  
payments of $5,385, interest at 3.06% per annum, 
matures June 26, 2021 32,024 94,620 

 

 $ 794,352 $ 1,175,045 
 

Principal payments required to retire the outstanding long-term debt are as follows: 
 
 

2021 $ 330,159 
2022 306,911 
2023 157,282 
Thereafter –   

 
 

6. Accumulated surplus: 

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves and reserve funds as follows: 
 

  2020 2019 
 

Surplus: 
Capital Fund Operations $ 2,325,444 $ 2,784,674 
Capital Fund Life Lease 8,221 5,665 
Current fund 2,212,882 2,216,831 
Reserves 410,650 388,730 

 

 $ 4,957,197 $ 5,395,900 
 



DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
  BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED
Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2020

7.  Tangible capital assets:

Balance at Balance at
December 31, December 31,

Cost 2019 Additions Disposals 2020

Land $ 374,500       $ -              $ -              $ 374,500         
Buildings 14,765,595  -              -              14,765,595    
Furniture, fixtures
  and equipment 1,307,579    12,527         -              1,320,106      
Computers 156,431       4,366           -              160,797         
Machinery 1,341,093    2,818           -              1,343,911      
West Side Park 363,000       -              -              363,000         
Medical supplies 189,608       6,488           -              196,096         

Total $ 18,497,806  $ 26,199         $ -              $ 18,524,005    

Balance at Balance at
Accumulated December 31, December 31,
Amortization 2019 Disposals Amortization 2020

Land $ -               $ -              $ -              $ -                 
Buildings 11,737,913  -              724,181       12,462,094    
Furniture, fixtures
  and equipment 1,201,817    -              18,443         1,220,260      
Computers 122,647       -              9,077           131,724         
Machinery 1,178,525    -              87,379         1,265,904      
West Side Park 136,125       -              18,150         154,275         
Medical supplies 161,060       -              8,892           169,952         

Total $ 14,538,087  $ -              $ 866,122       $ 15,404,209    

Net book value, Net book value,
December 31, December 31,

2019 2020

Land $ 374,500       $ 374,500         
Buildings 3,027,682    2,303,501      
Furniture, fixtures 
  and equipment 105,762       99,846           
Computers 33,784         29,073           
Machinery 162,568       78,007           
West Side Park 226,875       208,725         
Medical supplies 28,548         26,144           

Total $ 3,959,719    $ 3,119,796      
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DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
  BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED
Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2020

7.  Tangible capital assets (continued):

Balance at Balance at
December 31, December 31,

Cost 2018 Additions Disposals 2019

Land $ 374,500       $ -              $ -              $ 374,500         
Buildings 14,746,747  18,848         -              14,765,595    
Furniture, fixtures
  and equipment 1,268,862    38,717         -              1,307,579      
Computers 124,063       32,368         -              156,431         
Machinery 1,306,433    34,660         -              1,341,093      
West Side Park 363,000       -              -              363,000         
Medical supplies 169,082       20,526         -              189,608         

Total $ 18,352,687  $ 145,119       $ -              $ 18,497,806    

Balance at Balance at
Accumulated December 31, December 31,
Amortization 2018 Disposals Amortization 2019

Land $ -               $ -              $ -              $ -                 
Buildings 11,014,202  -              723,711       11,737,913    
Furniture, fixtures
  and equipment 1,183,784    -              18,033         1,201,817      
Computers 116,378       -              6,269           122,647         
Machinery 1,074,964    -              103,561       1,178,525      
West Side Park 117,975       -              18,150         136,125         
Medical supplies 154,599       -              6,461           161,060         

Total $ 13,661,902  $ -              $ 876,185       $ 14,538,087    

Net book value, Net book value,
December 31, December 31,

2018 2019

Land $ 374,500       $ 374,500         
Buildings 3,732,545    3,027,682      
Furniture, fixtures 
  and equipment 85,078         105,762         
Computers 7,685           33,784           
Machinery 231,469       162,568         
West Side Park 245,025       226,875         
Medical supplies 14,483         28,548           

Total $ 4,690,785    $ 3,959,719      
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8. Pension agreements: 

The Home made contributions to OMERS (the “Plan”), which is a multi-employer Plan, on behalf 
of all permanent, full-time and part-time members of its staff.  The Plan is a defined benefit plan 
which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on 
the length of service and rates of pay. 

The contributions required on account of current service for 2020 of $445,709 (2019 - $425,195) is 
included in the current fund operations. 

9. Budget figures: 

Budgets established for capital funds, reserves and reserve funds are based on a project-oriented 
basis, the costs of which may be carried out over one or more years.  Revenue fund budgets are 
affected on an ongoing basis as various government programs become available to the Home.  As 
such, the budgets are not directly comparable with current year actual amounts and Accumulated 
Surplus and Changes in Net Financial Assets. 

10. Segment disclosures: 

Segmented information has not been provided as it has been determined that such disclosures 
would not provide any additional relevant information to users. 

11. Commitments and contingencies: 

a) Consulting services: 

On December 14, 2020, the Home entered into a consulting services agreement with West 
Parry Sound Health Centre (the “consultant”). Under the terms of the agreement, the 
consultant shall provide advice and recommendations on an as-needed basis at the request of 
the Home in relations to its business and operations. This agreement has an annual fee of 
$326,000, requiring payment in equal monthly instalments. This agreement remains in 
effective until terminated on the earlier of December 31, 2021 and the date upon which the 
parties have entered into an approved management services agreement.   

b) Administrator services: 

On December 14, 2020, the Home entered into an administrator services agreement with 
West Parry Sound Health Centre (the “Hospital”). Under the terms of the agreement, the 
Hospital shall make available personnel to serve as the Home’s Administrator. This agreement 
has an annual fee of $147,000, requiring payment in equal monthly instalments. This 
agreement remains in effective until terminated on the earlier of December 31, 2021 and the 
date upon which the parties have entered into an approved management services agreement. 
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 12. Effects of COVID-19: 

In March of 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health 

Organization and has had a significant financial, market and social dislocating impact.   

Financial statements are required to be adjusted for events occurring between the date of the 

financial statements and the date of the auditors’ report which provides additional evidence 

relating to conditions that existed as at year end. At the time of approval of these financial 

statements, the Home implemented the following activities in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic: 

 Enhanced protocols implemented in line with Public Health guidelines; and 

 Put in place measures to limit and control access to the premises 

The situation is dynamic and the ultimate duration and magnitude of the COVID-19 pandemic’s 

impact on the Home’s operations and financial position is not known at this time. These impacts 

could include a decline in future revenues, changes to the value of assets and liabilities and the 

use of accumulated net assets to sustain operations. An estimate of the financial effect of the 

pandemic on the Home is not practical at this time.  

During the year, the Ministry of Long-Term Care provided additional funding relating to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. A total of $835,069 was received in the form of additional funding for 
operating and capital costs incurred as a direct result of the COVID-19 pandemic. An additional 
$405,502 in funding was received in the form of pandemic pay to help cover the additional wage 
paid to healthcare workers as a result of provincial legislation. As at December 31, 2020, 
$1,026,970 in additional funding was recognized in the Ministry of Long-Term Care – current on 
the statement of operations and accumulated surplus.  

 



DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
  BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED
Current Fund Operations

Schedule of Revenue and Expenses

Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

Budget 2020 2019
(note 9)

Revenue:

Ministry of Long-Term Care $ 4,680,138    $ 6,052,573    $ 4,624,036    

User charges 2,576,465    2,385,088    2,459,862    
Participating municipalities 1,517,189    1,517,189    1,517,191    
Miscellaneous 115,040       87,372        26,236        
Interest earned 11,275         17,402        62,280        

8,900,107    10,059,624  8,689,605    

Expenses:
Nursing/personal direct care 4,076,238    4,348,311    3,874,547    
General and administrative 918,392       1,041,361    598,424      
Infection prevention and control -              867,678      -              
Building and property operation
  and maintenance 955,074       789,332      731,971      
Nursing and personal care, administration 675,995       749,624      629,891      
Dietary services 733,640       727,696      712,465      
Program and support services 581,310       543,082      509,206      
Raw food 352,648       379,170      356,544      
Housekeeping services 471,945       379,095      303,601      
Laundry services 170,965       181,716      165,657      
Board meetings 12,500         5,310          20,185        

8,948,707    10,012,375  7,902,491    

Annual surplus (deficit) (48,600)        47,249        787,114      

Current fund balance, beginning of year 2,216,831    2,216,831    1,649,190    

Transfer to capital fund (66,529)        (51,198)       (219,473)     

Current fund balance, end of year $ 2,101,702    $ 2,212,882    $ 2,216,831    
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DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
  BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED
Capital Fund Operations

Schedule of Revenue and Expenses

Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

Budget 2020 2019
(note 9)

Revenue:
Ministry of Long-Term Care $ 382,586       $ 382,586       $ 381,540       
Interest earned -              2,243           273              

382,586       384,829       381,813       

Expenses:
Amortization of tangible capital assets 866,122       866,122       876,185       
Interest on long-term debt 26,717         29,135         41,142         

892,839       895,257       917,327       

Annual deficit (510,253)     (510,428)      (535,514)     

Capital fund balance, beginning of year 2,784,674    2,784,674    3,100,715    

Transfer from current fund 66,259         51,198         219,473       

Capital fund balance, end of year $ 2,340,680    $ 2,325,444    $ 2,784,674    
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DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
  BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED
Life Lease Operations

Schedule of Revenue and Expenses

Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

Budget 2020 2019
(note 9)

Revenue:
Sales $ -          $ 413,600       $ 185,000       
Maintenance and operating fees 138,096  138,096       132,380       
Miscellaneous 1,107      552              1,230           

139,203  552,248       318,610       

Expenses:
Unit costs -          413,600       185,000       
Operating 347,088  87,968         77,112         
Maintenance 34,291    36,124         40,519         

381,379  537,692       302,631       

Annual surplus (deficit) (242,176) 14,556         15,979         

Life Lease balance, beginning of year 5,665      5,665           (63,858)       

Transfer to reserves (12,000)   (12,000)       53,544         

Life Lease balance, end of year $ (248,511) $ 8,221           $ 5,665           

14



DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
  BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED
Reserve Fund Operations

Schedule of Revenue and Expenses

Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

2020 2019

Revenue:
Donations $ 15,246         $ 78,026         

Expenses:
Resident 5,326           23,422         

Annual surplus 9,920           54,604         

Reserves balance, beginning of year 388,730       387,670       

Transfer from life lease operations 12,000         (53,544)       

Reserves balance, end of year $ 410,650       $ 388,730       

Analyzed as follows:
Capital reserve $ 120,641       $ 120,641       
Resident reserve 102,717       92,797         
Building renovations reserve 76,701         76,701         
Life Lease maintenance reserve 110,545       98,545         
Life Lease gift fund 46                46                

$ 410,650       $ 388,730       
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of the District of Parry Sound (West) 
Belvedere Heights Home For the Aged-Life Lease 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of District of Parry Sound (West) Belvedere 
Heights Home For The Aged – Life Lease, (the “Home”) which comprise: 

• the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020 
• the statement of operations for the year then ended 
• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended 
• and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies  

(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”) 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Home as at December 31, 2020, and its results 
of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 
standards.  Our responsibility under those standards are further described in the 
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of 
our auditors’ report. 

We are independent of the Home in accordance with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled 
our other responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

 



 
 
 

 

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Home’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Home or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Home’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, 
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, internal 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Home’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 



 
 
 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to the events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Home’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditors’ report.  However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Home to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

 
 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
 
Sudbury, Canada 
April 26, 2021 

 

 



DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
 BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED
LIFE LEASE
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

2020 2019

Financial Assets

Cash $ 113,906       $ 92,376        
Prepaid expenses 6,695           13,728        
Accounts receivable 5,194           5,502          

 125,795        111,606      

Financial Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 6,982           7,350          

Effects of COVID-19 (note 3)

Net financial assets, being accumulated surplus (note 2)  $ 118,813        $ 104,256      

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

1



DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
 BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED
LIFE LEASE
Statement of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

2020 2019

Revenue:
Maintenance fees $ 138,096        $ 132,380       
Sales 413,600        185,000       
Miscellaneous 553               1,230           

552,249        318,610       

Expenses:
Maintenance 36,124          40,519         
Operating 87,968          77,112         
Capital 413,600        185,000       

537,692        302,631       

Surplus $ 14,557          $ 15,979         

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST)
 BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED
LIFE LEASE
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Operations:
Annual surplus $ 14,557          $ 15,979          

Change in non-cash working capital:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 308               (3,287)           
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 7,033            (8,080)           
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and 
  accrued liabilities (368)              5,929            
Decrease in payable to Belvedere Heights Home
   for the Aged -                    (22,554)         

21,530          (12,013)         

Increase (decrease) in cash 21,530          (12,013)         

Cash, beginning of year 92,376       104,389        

Cash, end of year $ 113,906        $ 92,376          

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST) 
BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED 

LIFE LEASE 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2020 
 
 
 
1. Significant accounting policies: 

The financial statements of District of Parry Sound (West) Belvedere Heights Home for The Aged 
– Life Lease (the “Home”) are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally 
accepted accounting principles for local governments as recommended by the Public Sector 
Accounting Board and the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.  Significant aspects of 
the accounting policies adopted by the Home are as follows: 

(a) Accrual basis of accounting: 

The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and 
measurable; expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of 
receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 

(b) Deposits: 

Deposits represent deposits received on Seniors Life Lease units.  These amounts will be 
recognized as part of the proceeds on the sale of the life leases in the year the unit is sold.   

(c) Reserves and Reserve Funds: 

Certain amounts, as approved by the Home, are set aside in reserves and reserves funds for 
future operating and capital purposes.  Transfers to and from reserves and reserve funds are 
adjusted to the respected fund when approved.   

(d) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting periods.  Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the 
carrying amount of tangible capital assets and valuation allowances for accounts receivable.  
Actual results could differ from those estimates.  These estimates are reviewed periodically, 
and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in earnings in the year in which 
they become known. 

2. Accumulated surplus: 
 

  2020 2019 
 

Operations   $ 8,221  $ 5,665  
Replacement Reserve 110,546  98,545  
Gift fund 46  46  

 $ 118,813 $ 104,256 
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DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND (WEST) 
BELVEDERE HEIGHTS HOME FOR THE AGED 

LIFE LEASE 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Year ended December 31, 2020 
 
 
 
3. Effects of COVID-19: 

In March of 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health 
Organization and has had a significant financial, market and social dislocating impact.  

Financial statements are required to be adjusted for events occurring between the date of the 
financial statements and the date of the auditors’ report which provide additional evidence relating 
to conditions that existed as at year-end. Management has assessed the financial impacts and 
there are no additional adjustments required to the financial statements at this time.  

 



AGENDA 

Community Policing Advisory Committee 
West Parry Sound Ontario Provincial Police 

October 21st, 2021 7:00 p.m. 
West Parry Sound OPP Detachment Boardroom 

1 North Road, Parry Sound 

1. Attendance

Present Absent CPAC Member 
Scott Sheard – Archipelago Township 
Debbie Crocker - Carling Township 
Mike Kekkonen – McKellar Township 
Bonnie Keith – Town of Parry Sound 
Joe McEwen – Municipality of Whitestone 
Lionel Fox – Henvey Inlet First Nation 
Joe Ryman – McDougall Township 
Rod Osborne – Seguin Township 
Al O’Brien – Byng Inlet/Britt 
S/Sgt. Jeremy McDonald  - OPP 
Sgt. Dawn Connor – OPP 
Detachment Admin Clerk – OPP 

2. Welcome and Introductions – S/Sgt. McDonald

3. Approval of July 2021 Minutes

4. Reports:
a. 2021 Q3 Detachment RMS, ICON and CRS Report: CPAC member comments/questions
b. 2021 Q3 Member comments/questions individual CFS Billing Summary Report
c. 2021 Q3 CSO Report and Foot Patrol Hours

5. New Business:
• Ongoing Focused Patrol – Hwy 124
• Focused Patrol at the Public Washrooms – Town of Parry Sound
• Ardbeg Focused Patrol
• Traffic Complaints – Extra enforcement requests

6. Correspondence

7. Other

8. Next Meeting Dates:

 January 20, 2022
 April 21st, 2022
 July 21st, 2022
 October 20th, 2022
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To:        Members of the Community Policing Advisory Committee 
Meeting Date:     15 July 2021 
Meeting Time:     7:00 p.m. 
Location:   West Parry Sound OPP Detachment – 1 North Road, Parry Sound 

MINUTES 

PRESENT WERE:  Mike Kekkonen Township of McKellar  
Rod Osborne  Township of Seguin 
Joe McEwen  Municipality of Whitestone 
Sgt. J. McDonald  Ontario Provincial Police 
Bonnie Keith   Town of Parry Sound 
Debbie Crocker Township of Carling  
Grant Walker  Township of the Archipelago 

ABSENT WERE: Joe Ryman Municipality of McDougall 

ABSENT GUEST:  Al O’Brien Britt/Byng Inlet 
Lionel Fox Henvey Inlet First Nation 

The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m.  Meeting conducted via zoom.  Councillors 
attended virtually via video.  OPP staff via video from Detachment.  

WELCOME 

Introduction by S/Sgt. McDonald.  Packages were received by all. R. Osborne unable to 
open media releases.  S/Sgt. McDonald will have Sgt. Connor re-send on Monday. 

MINUTES 

Minutes from April 2021 
- Motioned by B. Keith
- Seconded by R. Osborne

Minutes approved for April 2021 meeting. 

BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 

None 
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REPORTS 

Some areas higher than others.  No real reason other than the influx of people.  No 
explanation for why some investigations are higher than others. 

Each township gets its own numbers for the quarter.  Not received by D. Crocker – 
forwarded by S/Sgt. 

RMS Overall 

Violent crime down 40% from last year and overall 32%.  Most significant decrease is 
crimes against other persons.  Property crime is down.  Not unusual as a rash of B&E’s 
can inflate numbers.  Thefts and frauds are also down.  Mischiefs and possession of 
stolen property have increased.  Drug possession numbers are down.  Not much 
change in trafficking numbers.  Clearance rates are down this quarter but up overall.  
Unfounded incidents are down by 36%. 

Criminal record checks are down due to the pandemic 
- Only front line workers being checked
- Now re-opened and doing all types

S/Sgt. asked how committee wished to proceed with individual municipality numbers.  
Agreed that they would go through each municipality. 

Archipelago 
Nothing to speak to - differences are minor 

Carling 
D. Crocker - Assaults and violent crime are up for overall, same for this quarter
S/Sgt. advised we are in strange times

- cannot speak to specifics but definitely seeing strange numbers
- S/Sgt. would like to compare over five years

D. Crocker – 31 ytd from 22 in billing summary
- S/Sgt. indicated nothing jumping out from numbers

Parry Sound 
B. Keith – Stats are down compared to West Parry Sound.
Drugs overall for West Parry Sound has increased and questioning why this has
occurred

- S/Sgt. advised that this was driven by one investigation that resulted in a
warrant 

Seguin 
R. Osborne - Numbers are pretty stable.
Question about neighbour disputes at properties – problem with short term rentals
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- Should neighbours call police if problem with tenants?
- S/Sgt. advised this would be dependent on type of call and jurisdiction, ie. By-

law or police 
- another factor would be whether By-law is available at the time
- R. Osborne indicated that By-law is available 24/7 in Seguin
- police can also provide assistance to By-law if needed

Whitestone 
Not much to comment on 

- numbers not very high
- more people around contributing
- down on some serious crimes

Detachment ICON 

No short term solution to fix numbers.  Analytics department is still working on a fix.  
The best we can do is provide previous quarter as the current quarter is not accurate. 

Can expect a significant increase in the Big 4 this year as already significantly up in the 
first quarter.  Focused patrols increase the numbers.  Officers are better trained in SFST 
and every officer has the training now. 

R. Osborne – Are cruisers any better equipped?
S/Sgt. – There are enough roadsides for every officer working, marine included.
R. Osborne – Is the number of people driving impaired likely the same, just catching
more?
B. Keith – GSPS noted an increase in impaired driving too.  Pandemic is a factor.
S/Sgt. – We will have a better idea in a few years why numbers are the way they are
now.

CRS Report 

Patrol hours are up.  Marine patrol hours are standard for this time of year.  25 hours of 
ATV patrol due to people camping on Crown Land. 

Transfers – One member to the TIME team.  A replacement is coming from Southern 
Georgian Bay Detachment on 04Aug21. 
New Sergeant is from Norfolk – very experienced officer. 

Awards – Put on hold due to pandemic.  Awards are being sent out by RHQ (Regional 
Headquarters) and will be one on one presentations.  The formal ceremony is being 
forgone because of the pandemic. 
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CFS Billing 
 
Some up and some down.  No rhyme or reason.  Influx of people has positive and 
negative effects. 
 
Archipelago 
G. Walker – Noticed a huge number of properties changing hands.  New people coming 
to area and seem to be causing problems. 
 
D. Crocker – Notes the problems on the roads.  Speeds are a huge issue.  
Shebeshekong Road has been very bad. What do police suggest? 
S/Sgt. – People need to call police, need to know problem areas.  This helps the 
detachment know where to conduct focused patrols.  The information is captured by the 
Regional Analyst.  Hitting the area hard helps change behaviour.  Officers need to be 
out there when the behaviour is happening though.  Have done focused patrol in some 
areas with great results and may need to re-visit areas at times though.  Municipalities 
can implement traffic calming measures too. 
J. McEwen – Rate payers are hesitant to call in  
S/Sgt. – Have to put onus back on them 
R. Osborne – People don’t always want to leave name when reporting. 
S/Sgt. – Don’t necessarily have to identify self.  Crime Stoppers can be used if not 
urgent. 
R. Osborne – Highway 401 mentality is coming up here.  Can officers stop a pack of 
drivers all doing the same speed? 
S/Sgt. – yes 
 
G. Walker – Billing makes sense. Close in number of calls but bigger difference in hours 
– makes sense due to type of calls. 
 
Carling 
D. Crocker – Nothing outrageous.  Increase in operational hours and an increase in 
mental health calls. 
S/Sgt. – Mental health calls are up across the board. 
 
Parry Sound 
B. Keith – Wondering about Other Operational, ie. Lost Property and Dropped Cell 
S/Sgt. – Lost Property incidents mean anything lost that does not fit a specific code.  
The increase in people in the community could cause this increase. 
- Dropped Cell – dropped call or hang up before goes through, no voice contact. 
B. Keith – Would like a lexicon or agenda page that explains acronyms.  
 
Seguin 
S/Sgt. – Hours are down a bit from 2020.  Violent crime down significantly – 80 hours in 
2020, 16 in 2021. Other incidents are close.  Majority of gas drive offs are not actual 
thefts, there is no intent.  These incidents are common at the Petro-Canada as well 
Canadian Tire and Shell. 
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R. Osborne – Is the detachment at full compliment? 
S/Sgt. – Yes, when member arrives in August. 
R. Osborne – Any movement on configuration of board? 
S/Sgt. – Nothing yet and likely will not hear from Solicitor General until all municipalities 
have made their submissions. 
R. Osborne – Seguin and McDougall have made submissions. 
D. Crocker – Does not anticipate hearing until fall. 
 
Whitestone 
Overall numbers are down and hopefully this continues.  Property crime violations are 
up a bit.  Good in some ways to have people around but can also cause issues. 
 
 
CSO Report 
 
Still fairly involved in community and part of a lot of meetings.  No questions on what 
CSO provided. 
 
 
Drugs 
 
Marijuana seizures not as common.  Focusing on drugs that are directly affecting the 
community.  A traffic stop in the Wal-Mart parking lot resulted in fentanyl being found in 
a vehicle with a toddler.  The other main incident was a motor vehicle collision on 
Highway 69 in which a vehicle went head on with a tractor trailer.  The occupants were 
transporting drugs and money. 
 
D/Cst. B. Fox is the Community Street Crime Unit (CSCU) member for West Parry 
Sound.  He can request the assistance of other CSCU members to assist him.  D/Cst. 
Fox is passionate about his work and knows the players.  The detachment plans on 
designating another member to assist him if the detachment’s off season. 
 
D. Crocker – Any drugs related to Outlaw Motorcycle Gangs? 
S/Sgt. – The big picture is that drugs are always related to organized crime.  They are 
mainly originating from the GTA and there is a chain. 
D. Crocker – Is D/Cst. Fox the person to contact with information? 
S/Sgt. – Yes.  However, if the person wishes to remain anonymous then the safest way 
is to go through Crime Stoppers.  This provides protection from case law to the 
individual. 
 
B. Keith – Does succession planning play a role in putting someone in with D/Cst. Fox?  
S/Sgt. – It absolutely plays a role.  This is a unique position.  Another example would be 
the position of marine officers.  This position also requires careful succession planning. 
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NEW BUSINESS  
 
Focused Patrol 
 
1) Whitestone had complaints about people camping on Crown Land during EMCPA.  
These complaints were brought to the MNR and the OPP.  A joint operation was 
conducted.  The first step was to deter people with RIDE.  Following this, officers 
actually went into the location and gave the people a chance to leave.  If the people 
were still at the location when officers went back, then they were charged.  The 
messaging got out and prevented a lot of people from coming up to the area.  Members 
covered the area for two weeks and continued to check it regularly although it was 
difficult to access.  Our four dedicated marine officers, also ATV trained, provide 
coverage seven days a week.  They continue to check the location. 
 
2) Hwy 124 Construction 
This construction covers a 60 km/h stretch.  It has been made a focused patrol.  There 
has been a change in legislation pertaining to Stunt Driving. 40 km/h or more over in a 
posted 80 km/h or less zone is now deemed to be Stunt Driving.  Officers are patrolling 
while workers are there. 
R. Osborne – Are fines doubled in zone? 
S/Sgt. – Yes, if workers present. 
 
 
Format for Upcoming CPAC 
 
R. Osborne – Suggesting that a timeline be set for how long meetings should be on 
Zoom rather than doing meeting by meeting. 
 
J. McEwen – Recommends wait until after next meeting.  Will have a better picture by 
then of how long is needed. 
 
B. Keith – Suggests that end of January would be a good time.  The Police Services 
Board information should be available by then. 
 
S/Sgt. – We will continue virtual until the January meeting. 
 
G. Walker – Will check with MaryAnn to see if they can host next meeting.  Advises that 
unless hear otherwise, will be able to host. 
 
 
Correspondence 
 
No correspondence. 
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Other Business 
 
B. Keith – Would be beneficial to have police on Joseph between Church Street and No 
Frills due to high speed of motorists.  Speed spy was used.  Thursday and Friday 
between 1600 and 1800 hrs as well as around 1330 hrs seem to be the problem times. 
S/Sgt. – Will have Sergeants encourage officers to have two vehicles sit in area doing 
notes.  Two vehicles are necessary for officer safety. 
 
R. Osborne – Expressed condolences for the loss of the Toronto Police Service Officer.  
It is a dangerous and demanding job and officers deserve a great deal of respect. 
 
 
G. Walker left the meeting at 2030 hrs. 
 
Next meeting will be on 21OCT21. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 2039 hrs.  
 

8



Police Services Board Report for West Parry Sound 
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Violent Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Offences Causing 
Death

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Attempted Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Sexual Assault 14 4 -71.4% 26 17 -34.6%
Assault 36 33 -8.3% 96 85 -11.5%
Abduction 1 0 -100.0% 3 1 -66.7%
Robbery 0 1 -- 2 2 0.0%
Other Crimes Against a 
Person

21 15 -28.6% 55 27 -50.9%

Total 72 53 -26.4% 182 132 -27.5%
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Property Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Arson 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Break & Enter 12 10 -16.7% 54 29 -46.3%
Theft Over 9 15 66.7% 23 30 30.4%
Theft Under 60 45 -25.0% 168 118 -29.8%
Have Stolen Goods 1 0 -100.0% 5 5 0.0%
Fraud 28 32 14.3% 84 75 -10.7%
Mischief 37 31 -16.2% 63 67 6.3%
Total 147 133 -9.5% 397 324 -18.4%
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Drug Crime

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND, 4J10 - WEST PARRY SOUND (Still River) (Inactive), 4J70 - SHAWANAGA FN, 
4J71 - [PARRY ISLAND] WASAUKSING FN, 4J72 - ANISHINABEK PS (Inactive), 4J73 - MAGNETAWAN FN, 4J74 - HENVEY 
INLET FN
Area code(s): ( blank ), 0, 2 - Marine, 1813, 1817, 4069 - Carling, 4071 - Seguin, 4073 - Municipality of Whitestone, 4079 - 
McDougall, 4080 - McKellar, 4084 - Parry Sound, 4093 - The Archipelago, 4164 - Britt-Byng (Unorg), 4201 - Northeast Reg 
Unincorporated Area, 4517 - Magnetawan FN (Old Association), 4533, 4564 - Anishinabek PS, 4565, 4808 - Killbear Provincial 
Park, 4813 - Oastler Lake Provincial Park, 4829 - Grundy Lake Provincial Park, 4850 - Massasauga Provincial Park, 4870 - Hwy 
69, 4871 - Hwy 124, 4872 - Hwy 141, 4879 - Hwy 518, 4881 - Hwy 520, 4882 - Hwy 522, 4884 - Hwy 526, 4887 - Hwy 529, 
4888 - Hwy 529A, 4914 - Hwy 559, 4938 - Hwy 612, 4950 - Hwy 645, 4970 - Hwy 632, 4977 - Hwy 644, 4980 - Hwy 400, 0, 2 
- Marine (Old Association), 4080, 4093 - The Archipelago (Old Association), 4164 - Britt-Byng (Unorg) (Old Association), 4201 - 
Northeast Reg Unincorporated Area (Old Association), 4564 - Anishinabek PS (Old Association), 4816 - Sturgeon Bay Provincial 
Park (Old Association), 4829 - Grundy Lake Provincial Park (Old Association), 4870 - Hwy 69 (Old Association), 4882 - Hwy 522 
(Old Association), 4884 - Hwy 526 (Old Association), 4887 - Hwy 529 (Old Association), 4888 - Hwy 529A (Old Association), 
4938 - Hwy 612 (Old Association), 4950 - Hwy 645 (Old Association), 4977 - Hwy 644 (Old Association), 2, 4533 - Shawanaga 
FN, 2, 4540 - [Parry Island] Wasauksing FN, 4564 - Anishinabek PS (Old Association), 2, 4517 - Magnetawan FN, 2, 4565 - 
Henvey Inlet FN
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:21:29 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300
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Police Services Board Report for West Parry Sound 
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Actual July to September Year to Date - 
September

2020 2021 % 
Change

2020 2021 % 
Change

Possession 3 3 0.0% 7 8 14.3%
Trafficking 2 5 150.0% 9 13 44.4%
Importation and 
Production

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Total 5 8 60.0% 16 21 31.2%
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Clearance Rate
Clearance Rate July to September Year to Date - September

2020 2021 Difference 2020 2021 Difference

Violent Crime 80.6% 62.3% -18.3% 72.0% 71.2% -0.8%

Property Crime 19.7% 9.0% -10.7% 26.7% 18.5% -8.2%

Drug Crime 80.0% 87.5% 7.5% 87.5% 81.0% -6.6%

Total (Violent, 
Property & Drug)

44.6% 34.3% -10.3% 45.9% 42.5% -3.4%
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Unfounded

Unfounded July to September Year to Date - 
September

2020 2021 % 
Change

2020 2021 % 
Change

Total (Violent, Property 
& Drug)

41 39 -4.9% 98 76 -22.4%
0 20 40 60

Total
(Violent,
Property
& Drug)

2020 2021

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND, 4J10 - WEST PARRY SOUND (Still River) (Inactive), 4J70 - SHAWANAGA FN, 
4J71 - [PARRY ISLAND] WASAUKSING FN, 4J72 - ANISHINABEK PS (Inactive), 4J73 - MAGNETAWAN FN, 4J74 - HENVEY 
INLET FN
Area code(s): ( blank ), 0, 2 - Marine, 1813, 1817, 4069 - Carling, 4071 - Seguin, 4073 - Municipality of Whitestone, 4079 - 
McDougall, 4080 - McKellar, 4084 - Parry Sound, 4093 - The Archipelago, 4164 - Britt-Byng (Unorg), 4201 - Northeast Reg 
Unincorporated Area, 4517 - Magnetawan FN (Old Association), 4533, 4564 - Anishinabek PS, 4565, 4808 - Killbear Provincial 
Park, 4813 - Oastler Lake Provincial Park, 4829 - Grundy Lake Provincial Park, 4850 - Massasauga Provincial Park, 4870 - Hwy 
69, 4871 - Hwy 124, 4872 - Hwy 141, 4879 - Hwy 518, 4881 - Hwy 520, 4882 - Hwy 522, 4884 - Hwy 526, 4887 - Hwy 529, 
4888 - Hwy 529A, 4914 - Hwy 559, 4938 - Hwy 612, 4950 - Hwy 645, 4970 - Hwy 632, 4977 - Hwy 644, 4980 - Hwy 400, 0, 2 
- Marine (Old Association), 4080, 4093 - The Archipelago (Old Association), 4164 - Britt-Byng (Unorg) (Old Association), 4201 - 
Northeast Reg Unincorporated Area (Old Association), 4564 - Anishinabek PS (Old Association), 4816 - Sturgeon Bay Provincial 
Park (Old Association), 4829 - Grundy Lake Provincial Park (Old Association), 4870 - Hwy 69 (Old Association), 4882 - Hwy 522 
(Old Association), 4884 - Hwy 526 (Old Association), 4887 - Hwy 529 (Old Association), 4888 - Hwy 529A (Old Association), 
4938 - Hwy 612 (Old Association), 4950 - Hwy 645 (Old Association), 4977 - Hwy 644 (Old Association), 2, 4533 - Shawanaga 
FN, 2, 4540 - [Parry Island] Wasauksing FN, 4564 - Anishinabek PS (Old Association), 2, 4517 - Magnetawan FN, 2, 4565 - 
Henvey Inlet FN
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:21:29 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300
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Police Services Board Report for West Parry Sound 
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Criminal Record and Vulnerable Sector Screening Checks
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Criminal Record Checks 21 27 28.6% 119 60 -49.6%
Vulnerable Sector 
Screening Checks

71 116 63.4% 321 385 19.9%

0 40 80 120

Criminal
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2020 2021

Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police 
continue
to
investigate
and
solve
crime.

Data Utilized
-
Major
Crimes

- Niche RMS All Offence Level Business Intelligence Cube

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND, 4J10 - WEST PARRY SOUND (Still River) (Inactive), 4J70 - SHAWANAGA FN, 
4J71 - [PARRY ISLAND] WASAUKSING FN, 4J72 - ANISHINABEK PS (Inactive), 4J73 - MAGNETAWAN FN, 4J74 - HENVEY 
INLET FN
Area code(s): ( blank ), 0, 2 - Marine, 1813, 1817, 4069 - Carling, 4071 - Seguin, 4073 - Municipality of Whitestone, 4079 - 
McDougall, 4080 - McKellar, 4084 - Parry Sound, 4093 - The Archipelago, 4164 - Britt-Byng (Unorg), 4201 - Northeast Reg 
Unincorporated Area, 4517 - Magnetawan FN (Old Association), 4533, 4564 - Anishinabek PS, 4565, 4808 - Killbear Provincial 
Park, 4813 - Oastler Lake Provincial Park, 4829 - Grundy Lake Provincial Park, 4850 - Massasauga Provincial Park, 4870 - Hwy 
69, 4871 - Hwy 124, 4872 - Hwy 141, 4879 - Hwy 518, 4881 - Hwy 520, 4882 - Hwy 522, 4884 - Hwy 526, 4887 - Hwy 529, 
4888 - Hwy 529A, 4914 - Hwy 559, 4938 - Hwy 612, 4950 - Hwy 645, 4970 - Hwy 632, 4977 - Hwy 644, 4980 - Hwy 400, 0, 2 
- Marine (Old Association), 4080, 4093 - The Archipelago (Old Association), 4164 - Britt-Byng (Unorg) (Old Association), 4201 - 
Northeast Reg Unincorporated Area (Old Association), 4564 - Anishinabek PS (Old Association), 4816 - Sturgeon Bay Provincial 
Park (Old Association), 4829 - Grundy Lake Provincial Park (Old Association), 4870 - Hwy 69 (Old Association), 4882 - Hwy 522 
(Old Association), 4884 - Hwy 526 (Old Association), 4887 - Hwy 529 (Old Association), 4888 - Hwy 529A (Old Association), 
4938 - Hwy 612 (Old Association), 4950 - Hwy 645 (Old Association), 4977 - Hwy 644 (Old Association), 2, 4533 - Shawanaga 
FN, 2, 4540 - [Parry Island] Wasauksing FN, 4564 - Anishinabek PS (Old Association), 2, 4517 - Magnetawan FN, 2, 4565 - 
Henvey Inlet FN
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:21:29 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300
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Police Services Board Report for Archipelago
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Violent Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Offences Causing 
Death

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Attempted Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Sexual Assault 0 0 -- 0 3 --
Assault 0 1 -- 0 4 --
Abduction 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Robbery 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Crimes Against a 
Person

2 1 -50.0% 2 1 -50.0%

Total 2 2 0.0% 2 8 300.0%

0

0

1

1

2

2

Assault Other Crimes...
2020 2021

Ac
tu

al

Property Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Arson 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Break & Enter 1 0 -100.0% 9 2 -77.8%
Theft Over 0 0 -- 0 1 --
Theft Under 0 0 -- 0 1 --
Have Stolen Goods 1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0%
Fraud 2 0 -100.0% 2 1 -50.0%
Mischief 2 0 -100.0% 2 2 0.0%
Total 6 0 -100.0% 14 7 -50.0%
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Drug Crime
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Possession 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Trafficking 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Importation and 
Production

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Total 0 0 -- 0 0 --
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Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4093 - The Archipelago
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:18:07 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300
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Police Services Board Report for Archipelago
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Clearance Rate
Clearance Rate July to September Year to Date - September

2020 2021 Difference 2020 2021 Difference

Violent Crime 100.0% 50.0% -50.0% 100.0% 50.0% -50.0%

Property Crime 33.3% -- -- 42.9% 14.3% -28.6%

Drug Crime -- -- -- -- -- --

Total (Violent, 
Property & Drug)

50.0% 50.0% 0.0% 50.0% 44.4% -5.6%
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Unfounded July to September Year to Date - 
September

2020 2021 % 
Change

2020 2021 % 
Change

Total (Violent, Property 
& Drug)

1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0%
0 0 1 1

Total
(Violent,
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& Drug)

2020 2021

Criminal Record and Vulnerable Sector Screening Checks
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Criminal Record Checks 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Vulnerable Sector 
Screening Checks

0 1 -- 3 4 33.3%

0 0 1 1

Vulnerable
Secto...

2020 2021

Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police 
continue
to
investigate
and
solve
crime.

Data Utilized
-
Major
Crimes

- Niche RMS All Offence Level Business Intelligence Cube

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4093 - The Archipelago
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:18:07 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300
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Police Services Board Report for Carling
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Violent Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Offences Causing 
Death

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Attempted Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Sexual Assault 0 0 -- 0 1 --
Assault 0 0 -- 0 4 --
Abduction 1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0%
Robbery 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Crimes Against a 
Person

0 1 -- 0 1 --

Total 1 1 0.0% 1 6 500.0%
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2020 2021
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Property Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Arson 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Break & Enter 0 0 -- 1 1 0.0%
Theft Over 0 0 -- 2 0 -100.0%
Theft Under 1 0 -100.0% 2 0 -100.0%
Have Stolen Goods 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Fraud 1 2 100.0% 4 3 -25.0%
Mischief 1 1 0.0% 2 2 0.0%
Total 3 3 0.0% 11 6 -45.5%
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Theft Under Fraud Mischief
2020 2021
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Drug Crime
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Possession 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Trafficking 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Importation and 
Production

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Total 0 0 -- 0 0 --
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Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4069 - Carling
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:04:37 PM
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Police Services Board Report for Carling
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Clearance Rate
Clearance Rate July to September Year to Date - September

2020 2021 Difference 2020 2021 Difference

Violent Crime 100.0% 0.0% -100.0% 100.0% 83.3% -16.7%

Property Crime 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Drug Crime -- -- -- -- -- --

Total (Violent, 
Property & Drug)

25.0% 0.0% -25.0% 21.4% 46.2% 24.7%
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Unfounded

Unfounded July to September Year to Date - 
September

2020 2021 % 
Change

2020 2021 % 
Change

Total (Violent, Property 
& Drug)

1 0 -100.0% 3 0 -100.0%
0 0 1 1

Total
(Violent,
Property
& Drug)

2020 2021

Criminal Record and Vulnerable Sector Screening Checks
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Criminal Record Checks 0 2 -- 5 4 -20.0%
Vulnerable Sector 
Screening Checks

4 8 100.0% 17 22 29.4%

0 4 8

Criminal
Record ...
Vulnerable
Secto...

2020 2021

Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police 
continue
to
investigate
and
solve
crime.

Data Utilized
-
Major
Crimes

- Niche RMS All Offence Level Business Intelligence Cube

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4069 - Carling
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:04:37 PM
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Police Services Board Report for McDougall  
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Violent Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Offences Causing 
Death

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Attempted Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Sexual Assault 2 1 -50.0% 3 2 -33.3%
Assault 1 1 0.0% 6 4 -33.3%
Abduction 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Robbery 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Crimes Against a 
Person

2 2 0.0% 6 2 -66.7%

Total 5 4 -20.0% 15 8 -46.7%
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Property Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Arson 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Break & Enter 1 0 -100.0% 4 0 -100.0%
Theft Over 1 1 0.0% 1 2 100.0%
Theft Under 2 5 150.0% 4 10 150.0%
Have Stolen Goods 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Fraud 3 2 -33.3% 4 9 125.0%
Mischief 1 2 100.0% 3 4 33.3%
Total 8 10 25.0% 16 25 56.2%
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Drug Crime
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Possession 0 0 -- 0 1 --
Trafficking 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Importation and 
Production

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Total 0 0 -- 0 1 --
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Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4079 - McDougall
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:12:25 PM
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Police Services Board Report for McDougall  
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Clearance Rate
Clearance Rate July to September Year to Date - September

2020 2021 Difference 2020 2021 Difference

Violent Crime 100.0% 50.0% -50.0% 66.7% 75.0% 8.3%

Property Crime 12.5% 10.0% -2.5% 18.8% 16.0% -2.8%

Drug Crime -- -- -- -- 100.0% --

Total (Violent, 
Property & Drug)

50.0% 31.2% -18.8% 45.4% 37.8% -7.6%
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Unfounded

Unfounded July to September Year to Date - 
September

2020 2021 % 
Change

2020 2021 % 
Change

Total (Violent, Property 
& Drug)

3 0 -100.0% 9 3 -66.7%
0 2 3

Total
(Violent,
Property
& Drug)

2020 2021

Criminal Record and Vulnerable Sector Screening Checks
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Criminal Record Checks 6 5 -16.7% 20 13 -35.0%
Vulnerable Sector 
Screening Checks

14 20 42.9% 64 56 -12.5%

0 8 16 24

Criminal
Record ...
Vulnerable
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2020 2021

Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police 
continue
to
investigate
and
solve
crime.

Data Utilized
-
Major
Crimes

- Niche RMS All Offence Level Business Intelligence Cube

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4079 - McDougall
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:12:25 PM
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Police Services Board Report for McKellar 
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Violent Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Offences Causing 
Death

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Attempted Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Sexual Assault 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Assault 1 1 0.0% 1 1 0.0%
Abduction 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Robbery 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Crimes Against a 
Person

1 0 -100.0% 1 1 0.0%

Total 2 1 -50.0% 2 2 0.0%
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Property Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Arson 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Break & Enter 1 0 -100.0% 3 1 -66.7%
Theft Over 0 1 -- 1 1 0.0%
Theft Under 1 0 -100.0% 2 3 50.0%
Have Stolen Goods 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Fraud 1 3 200.0% 2 5 150.0%
Mischief 1 2 100.0% 1 4 300.0%
Total 4 6 50.0% 9 14 55.6%
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Drug Crime
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Possession 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Trafficking 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Importation and 
Production

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Total 0 0 -- 0 0 --

0
1
2
3
4
5

Ac
tu

al

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4080 - McKellar
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:13:20 PM
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Police Services Board Report for McKellar 
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Clearance Rate
Clearance Rate July to September Year to Date - September

2020 2021 Difference 2020 2021 Difference

Violent Crime 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0%

Property Crime 25.0% 16.7% -8.3% 33.3% 21.4% -11.9%

Drug Crime -- -- -- -- -- --

Total (Violent, 
Property & Drug)

50.0% 28.6% -21.4% 53.8% 35.3% -18.6%
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Unfounded July to September Year to Date - 
September

2020 2021 % 
Change

2020 2021 % 
Change

Total (Violent, Property 
& Drug)

1 2 100.0% 5 3 -40.0%
0 1 2 2

Total
(Violent,
Property
& Drug)

2020 2021

Criminal Record and Vulnerable Sector Screening Checks
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Criminal Record Checks 0 2 -- 7 5 -28.6%
Vulnerable Sector 
Screening Checks

6 5 -16.7% 14 31 121.4%
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Criminal
Record ...
Vulnerable
Secto...

2020 2021

Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police 
continue
to
investigate
and
solve
crime.

Data Utilized
-
Major
Crimes

- Niche RMS All Offence Level Business Intelligence Cube

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4080 - McKellar
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:13:20 PM
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Police Services Board Report for Parry Sound 
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Violent Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Offences Causing 
Death

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Attempted Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Sexual Assault 7 1 -85.7% 13 4 -69.2%
Assault 20 21 5.0% 58 46 -20.7%
Abduction 0 0 -- 2 1 -50.0%
Robbery 0 1 -- 2 2 0.0%
Other Crimes Against a 
Person

8 7 -12.5% 24 13 -45.8%

Total 35 30 -14.3% 99 66 -33.3%
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Property Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Arson 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Break & Enter 4 3 -25.0% 15 14 -6.7%
Theft Over 3 6 100.0% 10 12 20.0%
Theft Under 32 28 -12.5% 114 69 -39.5%
Have Stolen Goods 0 0 -- 2 1 -50.0%
Fraud 14 18 28.6% 53 38 -28.3%
Mischief 19 15 -21.1% 33 37 12.1%
Total 72 70 -2.8% 227 171 -24.7%
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Drug Crime
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Possession 3 2 -33.3% 5 4 -20.0%
Trafficking 1 4 300.0% 6 7 16.7%
Importation and 
Production

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Total 4 6 50.0% 11 11 0.0%
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Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4084 - Parry Sound
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:17:19 PM
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Police Services Board Report for Parry Sound 
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Clearance Rate
Clearance Rate July to September Year to Date - September

2020 2021 Difference 2020 2021 Difference

Violent Crime 80.0% 66.7% -13.3% 74.8% 71.2% -3.5%

Property Crime 26.4% 12.9% -13.5% 33.9% 22.8% -11.1%

Drug Crime 75.0% 83.3% 8.3% 81.8% 63.6% -18.2%

Total (Violent, 
Property & Drug)

47.9% 35.1% -12.7% 48.8% 40.4% -8.5%
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Unfounded July to September Year to Date - 
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2020 2021 % 
Change

2020 2021 % 
Change

Total (Violent, Property 
& Drug)

20 22 10.0% 51 48 -5.9%
0 8 16 24

Total
(Violent,
Property
& Drug)

2020 2021

Criminal Record and Vulnerable Sector Screening Checks
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Criminal Record Checks 10 7 -30.0% 56 19 -66.1%
Vulnerable Sector 
Screening Checks

30 50 66.7% 125 177 41.6%
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Criminal
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Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police 
continue
to
investigate
and
solve
crime.

Data Utilized
-
Major
Crimes

- Niche RMS All Offence Level Business Intelligence Cube

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4084 - Parry Sound
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:17:19 PM
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Police Services Board Report for Seguin 
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Violent Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Offences Causing 
Death

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Attempted Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Sexual Assault 0 0 -- 2 3 50.0%
Assault 8 5 -37.5% 17 11 -35.3%
Abduction 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Robbery 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Crimes Against a 
Person

3 2 -33.3% 11 4 -63.6%

Total 11 7 -36.4% 30 18 -40.0%
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Property Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Arson 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Break & Enter 2 2 0.0% 9 2 -77.8%
Theft Over 0 2 -- 2 6 200.0%
Theft Under 10 6 -40.0% 22 13 -40.9%
Have Stolen Goods 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Fraud 4 5 25.0% 7 14 100.0%
Mischief 7 3 -57.1% 12 6 -50.0%
Total 23 18 -21.7% 52 41 -21.2%
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Drug Crime
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Possession 0 1 -- 1 2 100.0%
Trafficking 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Importation and 
Production

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Total 0 1 -- 1 2 100.0%
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Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4071 - Seguin
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:10:49 PM
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Police Services Board Report for Seguin 
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Clearance Rate
Clearance Rate July to September Year to Date - September

2020 2021 Difference 2020 2021 Difference

Violent Crime 90.9% 71.4% -19.5% 66.7% 72.2% 5.6%

Property Crime 13.0% 0.0% -13.0% 7.7% 7.3% -0.4%

Drug Crime -- 100.0% -- 100.0% 100.0% 0.0%

Total (Violent, 
Property & Drug)

43.2% 28.6% -14.7% 36.3% 36.8% 0.5%
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Unfounded July to September Year to Date - 
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Change
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Total (Violent, Property 
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12 11 -8.3% 20 14 -30.0%
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Criminal Record and Vulnerable Sector Screening Checks
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Criminal Record Checks 3 7 133.3% 21 11 -47.6%
Vulnerable Sector 
Screening Checks

12 22 83.3% 74 70 -5.4%
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Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police 
continue
to
investigate
and
solve
crime.

Data Utilized
-
Major
Crimes

- Niche RMS All Offence Level Business Intelligence Cube

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4071 - Seguin
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:10:49 PM
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Police Services Board Report for Whitestone 
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Violent Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Offences Causing 
Death

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Attempted Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Sexual Assault 0 0 -- 2 0 -100.0%
Assault 1 2 100.0% 4 3 -25.0%
Abduction 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Robbery 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Crimes Against a 
Person

2 1 -50.0% 2 1 -50.0%

Total 3 3 0.0% 8 4 -50.0%
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Property Crime 
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Arson 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Break & Enter 0 0 -- 0 2 --
Theft Over 0 1 -- 0 1 --
Theft Under 1 4 300.0% 1 8 700.0%
Have Stolen Goods 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Fraud 1 0 -100.0% 3 1 -66.7%
Mischief 1 0 -100.0% 2 1 -50.0%
Total 3 5 66.7% 6 13 116.7%
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Drug Crime
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Possession 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Trafficking 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Importation and 
Production

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Total 0 0 -- 0 0 --
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Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4073 - Municipality of Whitestone
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:11:36 PM
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Police Services Board Report for Whitestone 
Records Management System

July to September - 2021

Clearance Rate
Clearance Rate July to September Year to Date - September

2020 2021 Difference 2020 2021 Difference

Violent Crime 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 62.5% 100.0% 37.5%

Property Crime 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 7.7% 7.7%

Drug Crime -- -- -- -- -- --

Total (Violent, 
Property & Drug)

50.0% 44.4% -5.6% 40.0% 33.3% -6.7%
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Unfounded July to September Year to Date - 
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Change

Total (Violent, Property 
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1 1 0.0% 2 2 0.0%
0 0 1 1

Total
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& Drug)

2020 2021

Criminal Record and Vulnerable Sector Screening Checks
Actual July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Criminal Record Checks 1 2 100.0% 5 5 0.0%
Vulnerable Sector 
Screening Checks

4 2 -50.0% 10 10 0.0%
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Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police 
continue
to
investigate
and
solve
crime.

Data Utilized
-
Major
Crimes

- Niche RMS All Offence Level Business Intelligence Cube

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): 4073 - Municipality of Whitestone
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/09 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:11:36 PM
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Starting Year 2021
Starting Month April 

Ending Month June

2020 2021 % Change 2020 2021 % Change
Highway Traffic Act 373 713 91.2% 706 1,223 73.2%
Criminal Code Traffic 48 60 25.0% 70 110 57.1%
Criminal Code Non-Traffic 337 208 -38.3% 736 547 -25.7%
Liquor Licence Act 43 32 -25.6% 48 61 27.1%
Other Violations 103 101 -1.9% 197 348 76.6%

All violations 904 1,114 23.2% 1,757 2,289 30.3%

2020 2021 % Change 2020 2021 % Change
Speeding 182 483 165.4% 320 795 148.4%
Seatbelt 7 23 228.6% 12 31 158.3%
Impaired 36 40 11.1% 50 74 48.0%
Distracted 7 9 29% 10 16 60.0%

Integrated Court Offence Network data is updated on a monthly basis: Data could be as much as a month and a half behind
Data Utilized
Ministry of Attorney General, Integrated Court Offence Network
Integrated Court Offence Network Business Intelligence Cube

Detachment: WPS
Data Source Date: 12-Oct-21
Report Generated On: 12-Oct-21
Report Generated By Connor

Traffic Related Charges

Offence Count April  to June - 2021 Year to Date  - June

Police Services Board Report for West Parry Sound Q4
Integrated Court Offence Network

April  to June - 2021

Offence Count April  to June - 2021 Year to Date  - June
Criminal Code and Provincial Statutes Charges Laid
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Police Services Board Report for West Parry Sound 
Collision Reporting System
July to September - 2021

Motor Vehicle Collisions by Type

Incidents July to September Year to Date - 
September

2020 2021 % 
Change

2020 2021 % 
Change

Fatal 1 1 0.0% 3 2 -33.3%
Personal Injury 24 27 12.5% 46 63 37.0%
Property Damage 110 102 -7.3% 298 288 -3.4%
Total 135 130 -3.7% 347 353 1.7%
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Fatalities in Detachment Area
Incidents July to September Year to Date - September

2020 2021 % Change 2020 2021 % Change
Motor Vehicle Collision Fatal Incidents 0 1 -- 1 2 100.0%

Alcohol Related 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Off-Road Vehicle Fatal Incidents 1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0%

Alcohol Related 1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0%
Motorized Snow Vehicle Fatal Incidents 0 0 -- 1 0 -100.0%

Alcohol Related 0 0 -- 0 0 --

Persons Killed July to September Year to Date - September
2020 2021 % Change 2020 2021 % Change

Motor Vehicle Collision 0 1 -- 1 2 100.0%
Off-Road Vehicle 1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0%
Motorized Snow Vehicle 0 0 -- 1 0 -100.0%

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00-WEST PARRY SOUND, 4J01-PARRY SOUND (Parry Sound (MI)), 4J10-WEST PARRY SOUND (Still 
River), 4J70-SHAWANAGA First Nation, 4J71-WASAUKSING First Nation, 4J72-ANISHINABEK PS, 4J73-MAGNETAWAN First 
Nation, 4J74-HENVEY INLET/PICKEREL FN
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/11 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:43:26 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300
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Police Services Board Report for West Parry Sound 
Collision Reporting System
July to September - 2021

Primary Causal Factors in Fatal Motor Vehicle Collisions
Incidents July to September Year to Date - 

September
2020 2021 % 

Change
2020 2021 % 

Change
Speeding as a 
contributing factor

0 0 0 1 0 -100.00%

Where alcohol is 
involved

0 0 0 0 0 0

Wildlife as a 
contributing factor

0 0 0 0 1 0

Inattentive driver as a 
contributing factor

0 0 0 0 0 0

Persons Killed July to September Year to Date - 
September

2020 2021 % 
Change

2020 2021 % 
Change

Seatbelt as a 
contributing factor

0 0 0 0 0 0
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- Collision Reporting System Business Intelligence Cube

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00-WEST PARRY SOUND, 4J01-PARRY SOUND (Parry Sound (MI)), 4J10-WEST PARRY SOUND (Still 
River), 4J70-SHAWANAGA First Nation, 4J71-WASAUKSING First Nation, 4J72-ANISHINABEK PS, 4J73-MAGNETAWAN First 
Nation, 4J74-HENVEY INLET/PICKEREL FN
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/10/11 Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:43:26 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300
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Police Services Board Report for West Parry Sound 
2021/Jul to 2021/Sep

Public Complaints
Policy 0
Service 0
Conduct 0

Date information collected from Professional Standards Bureau Commander Reports:    2021-10-12
Data Source
Ontario
Provincial
Police,
Professional
Standards
Bureau
Commander
Reports

- Includes all public policy, service and conduct complaints submitted to the Office of the Independent Police Review Director 
(OIPRD)

Secondary Employment

Daily Activity Reporting Patrol Hours
Total Hours 2021/Jul to 2021/Sep
Number of Cruiser Patrol Hours 2,196.75
Number of Motorcycle Patrol Hours 1.00
Number of Marine Patrol Hours 446.00
Number of ATV Patrol Hours 10.50
Number of Snowmobile Patrol Hours 1.00
Number of Bicycle Patrol Hours 0.00
Number of Foot Patrol Hours 160.00
Number of School Patrol Hours 2.00

Data source (Daily Activity Reporting System) date:   2021/10/09

Staffing Updates

Transfers: 
Constable DEHNKE transferred to the West Parry Sound Detachment in August 2021.  Constable 
Girouard competed for a position with the TIME Team and she was successful. She is scheduled to 
transfer out on the 20th of December.  Her replacement has not yet been identified. 

Awards: Constable Jessup received a Commissioner's Commendation for her involvement in an Impaired 
Driving investigation. Constable Scali received his 20 year Exemplary Service bar.  

Detachment: 4J - WEST PARRY SOUND
Location code(s): 4J00 - WEST PARRY SOUND
Area code(s): ODC - Blank Association, 9999 - Invalid Association, 4564 - Anishinabek PS, 4164 - Britt-Byng (Unorg), 4069 - 
Carling, 4829 - Grundy Lake Provincial Park, 4871 - Hwy 124, 4872 - Hwy 141, 4980 - Hwy 400, 4879 - Hwy 518, 4881 - Hwy 
520, 4882 - Hwy 522, 4884 - Hwy 526, 4887 - Hwy 529, 4888 - Hwy 529A, 4914 - Hwy 559, 4938 - Hwy 612, 4970 - Hwy 632, 
4977 - Hwy 644, 4950 - Hwy 645, 4870 - Hwy 69, 4808 - Killbear Provincial Park, 2 - Marine, 4850 - Massasauga Provincial 
Park, 4079 - McDougall, 4080 - McKellar, 4073 - Municipality of Whitestone, 4201 - Northeast Reg Unincorporated Area, 4813 - 
Oastler Lake Provincial Park, 4084 - Parry Sound, 4071 - Seguin, 4816 - Sturgeon Bay Provincial Park, 4093 - The Archipelago

Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
Connor, Dawn Oct 12, 2021 12:49:55 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300
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Calls for Service/Foot Patrol/CSO/Citizen Self Reporting 

 

 2020 – Q3 2021 – Q3 
Total Calls for Service 2761 3511 
Total Foot Patrol Hours 121 160 
Parry Sound Foot Patrol Hours  95 126.25 
Citizen Self Reporting  8 4 

 

CSO - PC Joe Scali 

Media: 

July 1st long weekend media 

Operation Safe Driver Commercial Motor Vehicles 

Civic Day long weekend media 

Move Over traffic initiative 

Good Samaritan Drug Overdose Act media 

Labour Day long weekend media 

Big 4 Traffic initiative 

Media releases 

Community involvement: 

Attended virtual meetings: 

CEMC every two weeks 

Attending meetings at the Situation Table where at risk/in crisis members in our 
community are identified and specific partners are engaged to assist them.  First and 
third Tuesday of the month. 

Continued Training for OPP Peer Support role. 

Involved in OPP Bicycle Program with Near North District School Board 

Whitestone Cottage Association virtual meeting 
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Community Living Virtual meeting 

Good Samaritan Drug Overdose Act community initiative  

Parry Sound Hope  

Friendship Centre Community Walk for Reconciliation  

 

Drug Seizures/Type: Q3 2021 

 

Benchmark Drug Offence: 

1) On the 5th of July, officers conducted a traffic stop on Hwy 400 is Seguin 
Township where Psilocybin chocolate was found in plain view. A conductive 
energy weapon and several thousand dollars of Canadian Currency were 
subsequently located in the vehicle. A female from Toronto was charged with 
Possession of a Schedule III substance, Unauthorized Possession of a Weapon, 
Occupant of Motor Vehicle knowing there was a Prohibited or Restricted 
Weapon, Possession of Property obtained by Crime over $5000, Possession of 
Illicit Cannabis, and Possession of a Schedule III substance for the Purpose of 
Trafficking. This is still before the courts. 

  

2) On the 8th of July, members of the West Parry Sound OPP, CSCU, and OCEB 
conducted a CDSA search warrant at a residence in the Town of Parry Sound.  
One local male and one local female were subsequently arrested and a quantity 
of cocaine, fentanyl, crystal meth and oxycodone was seized.  The female was 
held for bail and the male was released. All charges are still before the courts. 
 

 

3) On the 5th of August, a local male and female were reported to be intoxicated 
outside of the LCBO by staff. The male was arrested for public intox. The female 
was arrested and charged for possession for the purpose of trafficking fentanyl 
and heroin. She was held for bail and the charges are still before the courts.  
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4) On the 28th of September, police received a report of possible drug use on 
Church Street. The suspect vehicle was stopped on Rosetta St. There were two 
occupants from the Midland area in the vehicle.  The male was wanted out of 
Barrie and subsequently arrested. During a search incident to arrest, police 
located a large amount of cocaine and fentanyl and a possible firearm in the 
vehicle. Both occupants of the vehicle were charged with Possession of a 
Substance for the Purpose of Trafficking and Possession of a Weapon for a 
Dangerous Purpose.  The charges are still before the court.  
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c/o 70 Joseph Street, Parry Sound, ON, P2A 2G5 
wpsactivetrans@gmail.com  705-746-5801 

www.wpsactivetrans.org 
 

____________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 12, 2021 
 
 
Donald Sanderson and Jamie McGarvey 
Wellness Committee  
 
 
Re: New Recreation Centre  
 
Dear Mr. Sanderson and Mr. McGarvey:  

Given the June 7, 2021, announcement that the West Parry Sound Area Recreation and Culture Centre (the 
Wellness Centre) will receive $23.3 million from the Government of Canada and Government of Ontario to 
assist in the funding of the Wellness Centre, Parry Sound Area Active Transportation (PSAAT) feels that it is 
very important that site selection and design of the Wellness Centre prioritize principles of energy efficiency 
and sustainability, for example by maximizing active transportation access for staff and users.  Development of 
the Wellness Centre is a great opportunity to promote the current and future health and wellbeing of visitors 
and residents. With a long-term view, design and implementation can lead to a new municipal building that 
contributes to local climate change plans and reduced overall operating costs.  

As such, PSAAT would like to make the following recommendations: 

1. Location 
a. Should be within easy walking and cycling distance of as many of the seven (7) municipalities’ 

residents as possible. Ideally, it will be in close proximity to schools so it can be utilized during 
downtime and also for physical education and training programs as well as competition 
events. 

2. Access 
a. Provide for end of trip facilities (e.g. equipment storage and bicycle racks, sidewalks and 

shaded areas). 
b. If the site location is out of town, i.e., in close proximity to the current YMCA, it should have 

excellent walking and bike access with bridges over the larger roads. 
3. Walking Facilities 

a. Offer four (4) season walking facilities.   
4. Outdoor Exercise 

a. Allow for future sheltered outdoor walking exercise facilities for year-round, all-weather use. 
5. Integration with Long Range Plans 

a. Act as an integral part of, and perhaps as the hub, of the region’s walking and cycling route 
and trail system.  

6. Environmental and Energy Leadership 

mailto:wpsactivetrans@gmail.com
http://www.wpsactivetrans.org/


 

      

c/o 70 Joseph Street, Parry Sound, ON, P2A 2G5 
wpsactivetrans@gmail.com  705-746-5801 

www.wpsactivetrans.org 
 

____________________________________________________ 

a. Lead by example in terms of energy efficiency and renewable energy generation. Employ 
geothermal storage and both solar photovoltaic and hot water energy harvesting capacity.  If 
the facility is located within several hundred metres of other large buildings, it should act as a 
hub in a district heating system.  

 Further, there are grant opportunities, including a $175,000 grant available for 
geothermal site testing from the Federation of Canadian Municipalities. 

 If natural gas is still deemed to be necessary for heating the structure, it should be 
regarded as a short term bridge energy source or as a backup to the inevitable all 
electric/renewable and geothermal system. 

b. Provide charging facilities for both EVs (fast chargers to 250+kWh) and electric cycles 120V in 
the plans. Revenue will be generated by the fast chargers but 120v charging should be free to 
promote biking and also because the cost of collecting revenue would be higher than the 
revenue itself. 

 
Please feel free to contact us for more information on any of the above suggestions.  

 
Sincerely,  

 
 
John Meyer 
Chair – Parry Sound Area Active Transportation 
 
Cc Carling Township 
 Municipality of McDougall 
 Municipality of Whitestone 
 Town of Parry Sound 
 Township of the Archipelago 
 Township of McKellar 
 Township of Seguin 
  
  
  
  

 

mailto:wpsactivetrans@gmail.com
http://www.wpsactivetrans.org/


NEWS RELEASE 
For immediate release: October 7, 2021 

Health Unit Reaching People Where They Are At 

NIPISSING & PARRY SOUND, ON - Since the start of the COVID-19 vaccine rollout, the North Bay Parry Sound 
District Health Unit (Health Unit) has worked to ensure the COVID-19 vaccine is available to all eligible 
individuals in the district. This has required a variety of strategies to reach different populations within the 
district, including the mobile vaccine clinic. 

Between September 4 and October 4, 2021, the mobile vaccine clinic has administered 1,984 doses of COVID-
19 vaccine; 848 first doses, 1,080 second doses and 66 third doses to those eligible. 

“The use of the mobile vaccine clinic has allowed us to reach people in locations that we wouldn’t have been 
able to before,” explains Andrea McLellan, Director of COVID-19 Immunization Strategy. “We have been able 
to meet people where they are at, literally, including smaller municipalities and outside locations where 
people tend to visit regularly, such as grocery stores.” 

As of October 6, 2021 at 3 p.m., 85 per cent of residents 12 years of age and older have received at least one 
dose of a COVID-19 vaccine and 79 per cent of residents 12 years of age and older are fully vaccinated. To 
reach the provincial target of 90 per cent of eligible individuals to be fully vaccinated, the Health Unit’s district 
needs 5,746 people who have not been vaccinated to be fully vaccinated and 6,698 people who already have 
their first dose to get their second dose. 

Those who have questions about the COVID-19 vaccine can call the Health Unit’s call centre at 1-844-478-
1400 or book a phone call with a physician through VaxFacts. Parents who have questions about the COVID-
19 vaccine for their child can speak to a pediatric nurse through SickKids. The vaccine is still only available for 
children born in 2009 or earlier. 

Individuals who wish to receive their COVID-19 vaccine can visit myhealthunit.ca/GetVaccinated for up-to-
date information on where the mobile clinic will be. Appointments are currently not required to attend 
vaccine clinics, and both Pfizer and Moderna are offered at all clinics. 

-30- 

Media Inquiries: 
Alex McDermid, Public Relations Specialist 
P: 705-474-1400, ext. 5221 or 1-800-563-2808 
E: communications@healthunit.ca 

tel:18444781400
tel:18444781400
https://www.shn.ca/vaxfacts/
https://www.sickkids.ca/en/care-services/support-services/covid-19-vaccine-consult/
http://www.myhealthunit.ca/getvaccinated
tel:7054741400
tel:18005632808
mailto:communications@healthunit.ca


NEWS RELEASE 
For immediate release: October 4, 2021 

See the Person. Be Kind. Everyone Has a Story. Take Action on Stigma and Homelessness. 

NORTH BAY, ON - Nipissing District Homelessness and Housing Partnership (NDHHP) has launched a 
homelessness anti-stigma campaign called See the Person. The campaign promotes kindness toward people 
without a place to call home and encourages community members to learn more about housing and 
homelessness in their community. NDHHP is a collective of local organizations that work to reduce, address, and 
prevent homelessness in the Nipissing District. 

In the campaign, people with lived experience of homelessness, or ‘experts by experience’, share their insights 
and personal experiences. Jennifer Farrell, an expert by experience, says it’s simple, “See the Person. Be kind. 
Everyone has a story,” when discussing how people who are experiencing homelessness should be treated. 
“Negative attitudes and stereotypes are extremely harmful and damage a person’s self-worth. It is very 
challenging to face stigma while managing other challenges in one’s life. We need to work toward a more 
caring, inclusive community.” 

Stigma results in serious mental health impacts like deep feelings of shame. It contributes to social exclusion 
and acts as a barrier for people to seek necessary services within their community. Farrell says, “When people 
are treated with dignity and respect, it opens the door for healing and a sense of belonging. That’s what 
everyone needs when they’re down.” 

Homelessness is a complex community issue that has become increasingly visible in Nipissing District. The 
campaign aims to shed light on some of the key drivers of homelessness. Tawnia Healy, Community Health 
Promoter with North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit says, “Homelessness is often due to factors outside of 
a person’s control.” Factors such as poverty, lack of access to an affordable place to live, inadequate income, 
racism, discrimination, and impacts of childhood trauma all have a role to play in homelessness. Healy says, “It is 
unfair and unjust to stigmatize people for their health or housing status when the conditions for good health are 
simply not available to everyone.” 

Through the See the Person campaign, NDHHP encourages community members to take action on stigma and 
homelessness through compassion, education and advocacy. Community members can watch for the campaign on 
social media platforms and bus ads within North Bay. Learn more by visiting www.myhealthunit.ca/housingforall. 

-30- 

Media Inquiries: 
Alex McDermid, Public Relations Specialist 
P: 705-474-1400, ext. 5221 or 1-800-563-2808 
E: communications@healthunit.ca 

http://www.myhealthunit.ca/housingforall
tel:7054741400
tel:18005632808
mailto:communications@healthunit.ca


PUBLIC SERVICE ANNOUNCEMENT 
For immediate release: October 5, 2021 

Consider the Risk as you Plan for Thanksgiving 

NIPISSING & PARRY SOUND, ON – As you plan for Thanksgiving, it is important to consider the risk. The fourth 
wave is upon us, and although the North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit has experienced low case 
numbers, it is important that we continue to keep them low. 

To be safe: 
• Do not attend gatherings if you feel ill or have symptoms of COVID-19. Stay home and arrange to be 

tested. 

• Consider requiring all individuals attending a Thanksgiving event indoors to be vaccinated. 

• Consider celebrating outdoors, if possible, especially with individuals who are not vaccinated. More 
space, less risk. 

• Consider celebrating virtually, especially if family members are at increased risk of severe illness 
(elderly, people with medical conditions, weakened immune systems, etc.). 

• Family members and students should assess the risk they may pose to their families and loved ones 
before returning home for Thanksgiving. Consider: 

o Are you returning from an area with increased or increasing COVID-19 activity? Increased 
COVID-19 activity, increased risk. 

o Have you been limiting your social interactions and following two metre distancing, hand 
washing and face covering recommendations in the past 14 days? Increased interactions 
without precautions, increased risk. 

o Are you fully vaccinated against COVID-19? 

By making smart COVID-19 decisions we can continue to keep our case numbers low. For more information 
on the local COVID-19 situation visit myhealthunit.ca/COVID-19. 

-30- 

Media Inquiries: 
Alex McDermid, Public Relations Specialist 
P: 705-474-1400, ext. 5221 or 1-800-563-2808 
E: communications@healthunit.ca 

http://www.myhealthunit.ca/COVID-19
tel:7054741400
tel:18005632808
mailto:communications@healthunit.ca


PUBLIC SERVICE ANNOUNCEMENT 
For immediate release: October 4, 2021 

Mobile and Walk-in COVID-19 Vaccine Clinics to be Held October 5 to October 8 

NIPISSING & PARRY SOUND, ON – The North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit (Health Unit) will be holding 
COVID-19 vaccine clinics this week throughout the Health Unit district. Individuals who wish to receive a first 
or second dose are invited to walk in without an appointment and should bring a health card or other form of 
identification, if possible. Individuals eligible for a third dose can also attend clinics if they have the required 
documentation, as well as identification. Clinics will offer both Pfizer and Moderna vaccines. 

Clinics this week include: 
Parry Sound: 

• Tuesday, Oct. 5 at Sobeys (25 Pine Dr., Parry Sound) from 2 p.m. to 6 p.m. 

North Bay: 
• Wednesday, Oct. 6 at Nipissing University Robert J. Surtees Student Athletic Centre – Gym A (100 

College Dr., North Bay) from 12 p.m. to 3 p.m. 
• Thursday, Oct. 7 at Canadore College Main Campus (100 College Dr., North Bay) from 9 a.m. to 11 a.m. 
• Friday, Oct. 8 at Canadore College Aviation Campus (55 Aviation Ave., North Bay) from 9 a.m. to 10:30 

a.m. 
• Friday, Oct. 8 at Canadore College Commerce Court (60 Commerce Cres., North Bay) from 1 p.m. to 

2:30 p.m. 

Mattawa: 
• Tuesday, Oct. 5 at Mattawa Golden Age Club (476 Poplar St., Mattawa) from 4 p.m. to 6 p.m. 

Sturgeon Falls: 
• Wednesday, Oct. 6 at Collège Boréal (96 Main St., Sturgeon Falls, Parking Lot B) from 1:30 p.m. to 3:30 

p.m. 

Sundridge: 
• Thursday, Oct.7 at Royal Canadian Legion (10383 Hwy 124, Sundridge) from 4 p.m. to 7 p.m. 

To stay up to date with upcoming clinics, visit myhealthunit.ca/GetVaccinated. 

-30- 

Media Inquiries: 
Alex McDermid, Public Relations Specialist 
P: 705-474-1400, ext. 5221 or 1-800-563-2808 
E: communications@healthunit.ca 

http://www.myhealthunit.ca/GetVaccinated
tel:7054741400
tel:18005632808
mailto:communications@healthunit.ca


PUBLIC SERVICE ANNOUNCEMENT 
For immediate release: October 13, 2021 

Walk-in and Mobile COVID-19 Vaccine Clinics to be Held October 13 to October 17 

NIPISSING & PARRY SOUND, ON – The North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit (Health Unit) will be holding 
COVID-19 vaccine clinics this week throughout the Health Unit district. Individuals who wish to receive a first 
or second dose are invited to walk-in without an appointment and should bring a health card or another form 
of identification, if possible. Individuals eligible for a third dose can also attend clinics if they have the 
required documentation, as well as identification. Clinics will offer both Pfizer and Moderna vaccines. 

Clinics this week include: 
North Bay 

• Thursday, Oct. 14 at Elks Lodge (325 Elks Ln., North Bay) from 4 p.m. to 8 p.m. 

Sturgeon Falls 
• Wednesday, Oct. 13 at Marcel Noel Hall (219 O’Hara St., Sturgeon Falls) 
• Thursday, Oct. 14 at West Nipissing General Hospital (725 Coursol Rd., Sturgeon Falls) 

Parry Sound 
• Friday, Oct. 15 at Sequin Township Office (5 Humphrey Dr., Humphrey) from 11 a.m. to 1 p.m. 
• Friday, Oct. 15 at Dunn’s Parry Sound Self Storage (15 William St., Parry Sound) from 3:30 p.m. to 

5:30 p.m. 

South River 
• Saturday, Oct. 16 at South River-Machar Community Centre (1 Lincoln Ave., South River) from 

2:30 p.m. to 4 p.m. 

Trout Creek 
• Saturday, Oct. 16 at Trout Creek Community Centre (181 Main St. W, Trout Creek) from 11 a.m. to 

12:30 p.m. 

Callander 
• Sunday, Oct. 17 at Callander waterfront from 9 a.m. to 10:30 a.m. 

Astorville 
• Sunday, Oct. 17 at East Ferris Community Centre and Arena (1267 Village Rd., Astorville) from noon to 

1:30 p.m. 



 

Corbeil 
• Sunday, Oct. 17 at East Ferris Town Hall (390 Hwy 94, Corbeil) from 3:30 p.m. to 4:30 p.m. 

To stay up to date with upcoming clinics, visit www.myhealthunit.ca/GetVaccinated. 

-30- 

Media Inquiries: 
Alex McDermid, Public Relations Specialist 
P: 705-474-1400, ext. 5221 or 1-800-563-2808 
E: communications@healthunit.ca 

http://www.myhealthunit.ca/GetVaccinated
tel:7054741400
tel:18005632808
mailto:communications@healthunit.ca
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